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AAEH
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited — Macau

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

China Construction Bank, Shenzhen Branch, Gongming Sub-branch

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Ltd.
China CITIC Bank, Shenzhen Branch, Civic Center Sub-branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN PRC

TK Technology Park

Tangjia Community
Gongming Sub-district Office
Guangming New District
Shenzhen, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B

Hi-Tech Industrial Centre

No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock code: 2283)

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.tkmold.com
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Results & Financial performances

Results
Revenue (HK dollar ’000)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

(HK dollar "000)
Basic earnings per share (HK dollar)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)

Gross profit margin

Net profit margin

Return on equity (Note 1)

Return on assets (Note 2)

Inventory turnover days (Note 3)

Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4)
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5)

Financial position

Net current assets (HK dollar *000)
Current ratio (Note 6)

Quick ratio (Note 7)

Gearing ratio* (Note 8)

Net gearing ratio (Note 9)

Notes:

(BN BRR 2015
E
WA (F&TT) 1,606,205
KARHEE ANEMEZF (FAERT)

187,088
EAXERAEF (BT 0.23
EEFRARBEE CEWL) 7.0
EH = 26.1%
F T & 11.6%
f& AN B3R = (Bt 1) 30.9%
BERRE(Ax2) 14.4%
FEREXE(HE3) 80
B S REBREREXE (M iF4) 45
B o RN R RAE RS (A iESs) 63
B 3% iR 3R
MENEEFE(T BT 304,412
mE L R (ffaE6) 149.1%
RENLL K (K it7) 108.1%
EEABELER(Kit8) 33.9%
FEEAMGBLEKZEI) 0%

ffat

(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and (1)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

2 Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and 2)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

3 Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory 3)
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4) Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade 4)
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

) Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables )
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and )

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7)

liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

8 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and 8)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings net- ©
off cash and pledged bank deposit) by total equity and multiplying the resulting
value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 was HK$299,258,000 and

HK$220,026,000 respectively.

* The decrease of gearing ratio was due to decreased operating loan as a result of

sufficient fund flows of the Group as well as the increased equity as a result of

profits earned during the year.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
mE (E)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

FFERA—EEE DT
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—EB-—F —E-=5F —E-E —T—AF —E—RF
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
W e e e
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT FH&T FExT
Mold fabrication RERIUE 356,245 476,024 540,259 588,800 631,396
Plastic components ¥ #8408 {4 &it
manufacturing 739,740 721,828 798,661 1,017,405 995,215
Total st 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920 1,606,205 1,626,611
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hairman’s Statement
FEREE

Li Pui Leung 5T R
Chairman 3 J&

In order to keep pace with the advancement in
technology, TK Group is committed to making
new breakthroughs in the industry, and we also
expect to expand the Group’s customer base
rapidly through strategic project investments,
thus driving an overall growth in our businesses
so as to create a synergy between our finance
and businesses.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

TEHREE(E)

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “TK Group” or the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016 (the “Year under Review”).

2016 was an undoubtedly challenging year full of uncertainty. Despite the
difficult operating environment, TK Group managed to record new high
performance. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
revenue amounted to HK$1,626.6 million (2015: HK$1,606.2 million), and
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased by
9.9% to approximately HK$205.7 million (2015: HK$187.1 million)
compared to that of last year. The gross profit margin and net profit
margin were up by 2.0 percentage points and 1.0 percentage point to
28.1% and 12.6% (2015: 26.1% and 11.6%) respectively, standing out in
the industry. TK Group’s robust performance relied on the shareholders’
trust and support on the Board, mutual interests among employees of TK
Group, society, the natural environment, customers and suppliers as well
as fair and harmonious culture of TK Group. Since listing in 2013, the
Group has been fuffiling its commitment to distribute dividends not less
than 30% of its profit and increased the dividend payout ratio when with
abundant cash. For the year, the Board of the Company decided to
recommend raising the dividend payout ratio to 56.3% and pay a final
dividend of HK10 cents, totaling HK14 cents together with the interim
dividend, to share the results and joy with the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEmESE (8

TK Group strives to continuously improve molds process and quality,
enabling us to achieve sustained performance growth. Being one of the
world’s leading providers of one-stop integrated plastics solutions, the
Group has more than 30 years’ experience in the plastic mold industry.
With ability to manufacture the highest precision (MT1) molds, the Group
seeks to enhance production technologies for plastic molds and plastic
products through self-innovation. TK Group has been investing HK$120
million on average every year since its listing in 2013 to reform and
upgrade its production lines and processes, and introduced a smart
flexible production line with Industry 4.0 concept in early 2015 which
successfully enhanced the efficiency of overall plastic mold production,
so as to provide downstream customers with higher quality molds,
leading the industry to enter into an age of reform of high intelligence.
This perseverance was well recognized in 2016 by receiving the “2016
Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Upgrading and Transformation Award”
from the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. This award is a
recognition for TK Group’s upgrading and transformation and the
improvement of production technology, as well as a testimony for TK
Group’s development into a leading enterprise in the plastic mold
industry.

In addition, the Group’s excellent plastic mold manufacturing technology
has gained trust from many international leading brands and high-end
electronics brands, enabling the Group to be recognized by an
independent third-party market research and consulting institution as the
largest MT3 plastic mold manufacturer in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC) during the Year under Review (based on export value in 2015).
In addition to high-quality production technology, the Group’s keen
insight into the product trend also enables the Group to provide high-
quality molds and plastic products to cater to new products of
downstream customers more flexibly and rapidly, so that downstream
customers may respond in a timely manner to meet consumers’ demand
for both function and appearance design. Our focus on improving
production technology and our intention to meet customer needs enable
the Group to accumulate many internationally famous consumer brand
customers, including a number of leading brands in many fast-growing
industries such as commercial and telecommunications equipment,
smart mobiles, health care, wearable devices, smart home appliances
and automobiles, and become their closest and most trusted partner.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The Group continued to explore new customers with potential in addition
to the existing superior customers. Based on the excellent track record
with many emerging and high-growth industry brand customers, TK
Group was highly recognised and favoured among the emerging
electronic enterprises in Silicon Valley, which helped continue to explore
new customers and develop new products. In 2016, we worked with a
leading American virtual reality hardware product brand and a mobile
protective case brand with best sales in the U.S., which optimized the
Group’s diversified customer portfolio.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group’s stable growth achieved in both revenue and profit in 2016
was attributable to a number of invaluable factors, namely the leaders’
value and the sound atmosphere created by our staff. That is where our
corporate culture, the cornerstone to be a long-lasting enterprise, lies in.
| am proud that our Group has effective and supported corporate culture
in place.

Integrity is the top principle of our corporate culture, and creates a non-
corrupt corporate culture system, without which, there could never be
“fairness, justice, openness” culture system for the Company’s healthy
development. On the other hand, any office-palitics is prohibited. Instead,
every staff is encouraged to be concentrated and work for good. Also,
we have established a bottom-up motivation mechanism to help our staff
actively protect their personal interest and the Group’s interest. And all of
the above also enable the Group to achieve stable growth in
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEmESE (8

OUTLOOK

The Group is expected to continue to be affected by external factors in
2017, such as global geopolitical instability, U.S. rate hike cycle and
China economic slowdown. Despite the uncertain economic environment,
technology develops rapidly, and the application of high-end consumer
electronics is penetrating into every detail of human life. TK Group keeps
pace with technological development and seeks new breakthroughs. The
Group will continue to strengthen its leading position on the plastic
injection industry chain while being committed to investing in future
technology. We expect to explore and foster high-tech start-ups with
growth potential by strategic project investment, especially in the health
and medical related sectors. We expect to participate in the frontier
research and development of technology products of start-ups to
optimize the appearance and function of products by our high-quality
plastic injection technology, so as to create financial and business
synergies. Moreover, we plan to explore new markets and new
customers through strategic project investment, including the huge
market of high-end consumer electronics in Mainland China, and expand
the Group’s geographical presence rapidly to drive the overall business
growth.

We firmly believe that only companies that are well equipped can survive
in the face of adversity. In the future, I, together with management of TK
Group, will continue to lead the Group to go ahead, further strengthen
our professionalism and devotion, enhance the outstanding capacity and
technology process for production of high-precision plastic molds,
optimize the diversified customer mix, and expand businesses through
flexible and prudent strategies to deepen and extend our businesses. We
are also committed to maintaining a sound financial position and sufficient
cash flow to ensure that we implement long-term high dividend payout
ratio policy and share fruitful results with our shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for the
support of all business partners, customers and shareholders, and the
contributions of the management and all staff of TK Group for the past
year. We believe that, with our dedication and efforts, TK Group will be
sure to record new high performance in the coming year.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 13 March 2017
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ZFHfE ABB
Customers
include ABB

e E Smart home

EFEREALNEERERE
Customers include leading
smart home brand

(o)

HFRE

Digital devices

FFEFRELNREICIEE mmhE
Customers include leading flash
memory product brand

Household electrical appliances

B EEEMER PR

Customers include Whirlpool, Electrolux

B2 5 I 1 A EIE Medical and health care

EFERALHNEAZEERERE

Customers include leading health care product brand




FHEN A FERE

Mobile phones and wearable devices

EFERALNERFEMER I FRHESREHRE
Customers include leading smartphone brand and
wearable sports video camera brand

4.9%

BEIEREE ]
Commercial
telecommunications
equipment

Z FH8¥E Polycom
Customers include
Polycom

Revenue of 2016
2016 T A

JSE Automobiles

%= F 8 3E Faurecia * Promens
Customers include Faurecia, Promens
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRR DN

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners for the year of HK$205.7 million (2015:
HK$187.1 million), representing an increase of 9.9% over last year. The net profit margin

increased to 12.6% (2015: 11.6%). Basic earmnings per share was approximately HK25 cents

(2015: HK23 cents).

AEBRERNFEEHEE ABIGRENE205.7H &8 T (20154
11.6%) - FIREARE R A 257810

EFEIERIIY o AR EIE T E12.6% (20154
(20155 : 23781l)

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under Review, some of the Group’s downstream high-
end electronics brand customers postponed their plans for selling new
products, due to the unfavorable market consumption climate as a result
of continued slowdown in economic growth in China as represented by
the shortage of orders and even close down faced by many
manufacturing enterprises, and sluggish recovery in the American and
European markets, as well as the international political factors. The
decrease of the Group’s revenue of mobile phones and wearable devices
was primarily attributable to the impact of product life cycle of mobile
phone customers, however, our orders have been recovered in the
second half of the year. With the effective strategy of diversified
customers and the leading high-precision plastic mold development
capabilities, the Group’s business segments of automobiles molds and
commercial telecommunications equipment still recorded strong growth
during the year. At the same time, our smart home segment, which was
newly established in 2015, maintained stable growth during its initial
development period, enabling the Group’s overall turnover during the
year under review to remain at a good level. In 2016, the Group’s revenue
was HK$1,626.6 million (2015: HK$1,606.2 million), representing a slight
increase of 1.3% compared to that of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEENmEDIT(E)
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HK$ million
BEAETT
Automobiles R 387.1
Commercial telecommunications 74 3£ #8158
equipment 374.6
Mobile phones and wearable F & n] FEE
devices HAE 296.0
Medical and health care BEENEAER 217.6
Smart home BHERE 90.7
Household electrical appliances e 88.7
Digital devices HFHE 79.2
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2015 Change
25
HKS$ million %

BEET %

%  HK$ million %
% BEABTT %

T B W

302.4 18.8 84.7 28.0
23.0 3112 194 63.4 20.4
18.2 332.0 20.7 -36.0 -10.8
13.4 203.7 127 13.9 6.8
5.6 78.0 4.9 127 163
5.5 138.9 8.6 -50.2 -36.1
4.9 110.1 6.9 -30.9 -28.1
5.6 129.9 8.0 -37.2 -28.6
1,606.2 100.0 20.4 1.3
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE Lo (E)

During the Year under Review, the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margin increased to HK$456.5 milion (2015: HK$418.9 million) and
28.1% (2015: 26.1%) respectively, representing a year-on-year increase
of 2.0 percentage points. Despite the grim macroeconomic environment,
the Group continued to strengthen the application of automation and
optimise the smart flexible production line with Industry 4.0 concept
introduced in early 2015, which significantly improved the production
time and the product quality. During the year, the Group also optimised
its product structure to improve the production efficiency. In addition,
continuous depreciation of Renminbi (‘RMB”) in 2016 eased some cost
pressure of the Group on the raw materials and wages, etc.

Taking into account the above factors, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to owners for the year of HK$205.7 million (2015: HK$187.1
million), representing an increase of 9.9% over last year. The net profit
margin during the year under review increased to 12.6% (2015: 11.6%).
Basic earnings per share during the year under review was HK25 cents
(2015: HK23 cents).

In addition, the Group’s trade receivable turnover days was only 45 days
due to our effective credit policy, which also enabled the Group’s net
cash as at 31 December 2016 to increase to HK$299.3 million (2015:
HK$220.0 million). The sound financial position is fundamental for the
Group’s development, and strong cash flows enable the Group to
proactively identify appropriate merger and acquisition targets and to
place the Group in a strong position in facing the uncertain economic
situation.

Moreover, the Group’s existing orders were sufficient. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s existing orders amounted to HK$645.5 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.9% compared to HK$603.6
million of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Mold Fabrication Business

The turnover of the mold fabrication business division amounted to
approximately HK$631.4 million in 2016, representing an increase of
approximately 7.2% when compared to approximately HK$588.8 million
in 2015, and accounting for approximately 38.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group’s production line of ultra-large standard molds
commenced operation in the fourth quarter of 2014 for the manufacturing
of plastic mold for instrument panels, bumpers and door panels. Due to
longer cycle of mold fabrication, the molds manufactured in 2015 started
to be delivered in succession in early 2016, which brought significant
revenue contribution to the Group in 2016.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin for mold fabrication
business division was 28.4%, representing a significant increase of 3.0
percentage points when compared to 25.4% in last year, which was
primarily due to that the Group successfully secured a major German
automobile brand customer through the newly acquired German
subsidiary in 2014, driving the Group’s automobile mold business to
record continuous growth. In 2016, the automobiles business also
recorded a significant increase of 28.0% year on year.

In addition to the production line of ultra-large standard molds, the Group
has a production line of precision molds, covering a number of high-end
consumer electronics businesses, such as commercial telecommunications
equipment, mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and health
care, and coupled with the downstream plastic components
manufacturing business, the Group can provide one-stop services to
bring more convenience and economic benefits to its customers.

Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

The turnover of the plastic components manufacturing business division
amounted to approximately HK$995.2 million in 2016 (2015: HK$1,017.4
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.2%, and accounting
for approximately 61.2% of the Group’s total revenue. The slight
decrease was mainly due to the impact of weak economy and
consumption sentiment as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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For mobile phones and wearable devices, the Group recorded a
decrease in revenue of approximately 10.8% for the year. The Group’s
revenue of this segment significantly decreased in the first half of the year
mainly due to the impact of product life cycle. However, due to the
launching of new mobile phones in the second half of the year, the
revenue tended to rebound. For commercial telecommunications
equipment, the Group recorded an increase in revenue of 20.4% during
the year under review, which was mainly due to the launching of multi-
functional new products with higher unit price by Polycom, a major
customer of the Group, in the second half of 2016, such as
telecommunications equipment with LED screen, enabling the Group as
its core manufacturer to receive sizable orders from it, which boosted
significant growth of this segment. For medical and health care, with
continuous launching of new products by customers, this segment
maintained steady growth and recorded a year-on-year increase of 6.8%
during the Year under Review.

The Group’s insight into high-end consumer electronics market enables
the Group to stand in the forefront of scientific development all the time.
In 2015, the Group successfully secured a leading smart home brand
customer, which recorded strong growth in the first half of 2016.
However, revenue for the year slightly slowed down to a year-on-year
growth of 16.3% as our customers postponed to launch new products. It
is expected that our customers will be more active in launching new
products in 2017, which will result in higher business growth.

In order to meet our customers’ needs for high-performance and high-
quality plastic products, the Group is committed to its development
concept of seeking highly automatic plastic injection production. During
the year under review, with continuous efforts in automatic production
which improved its production efficiency, the Group’s gross profit margin
for the plastic components manufacturing business increased to 27.8%
from 26.4% in last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Awards and Achievements

During the Year under Review, the Group’s endeavor to the plastic mold
production technology reform received praise and recognition in the
industry by receiving the “2016 Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
Upgrading and Transformation Award” from the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council. This award is an encouragement for the Group to
continue its production technology reform in the future. Moreover,
according to the market research report from an independent third party,
the Group was recognized as the largest plastic mold manufacturer in the
PRC for molds above MT3 (the mold precision level according to “GB/
T14486-2008 Standard of the People’s Republic of China” and “Standard
for Dimensional Tolerance for Plastic Molds”) in 2015 (based on export
value), ranking one position higher than that in 2012, which shows the
quality of the Group’s product has reached world’s leading level.

OUR CLIENTS

Clients of the Group cover a wide range of industries, from automobile to
household electrical appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices
as well as medical and health care. As a key supplier of molds and
plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group’s orders are widely
impacted by the launch time, popularity and life cycle of products of its
downstream industry clients. However, being engaged in molds and
plastic injection industry for more than 30 years, the Group always sticks
to the strategy of client diversity in order to manage and diversify risks
efficiently. Currently, the Group has been widely recognized as a
trustworthy business partner of various internationally known brands of
consumer goods, including numbers of leading brands in many fast-
growing industries such as smart mobiles, health care and wearable
devices.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$1,626.6 million,
representing an increase of HK$20.4 million or 1.3%, from revenue of
HK$1,606.2 million in 2015.

BIEE T Lo ()

RIER KR

CETRN AEBERARKEIBEREALE
ERMNS IESEANKENS T &
EEEFIERBEREI20168FLH
XA AREAEE BASERKRE
BENAERMEBERGOEBER - 1
Gy —EABYBE=ZFHNTIS AR RS ER
N @ £2015F B & AMT3 (1R B+ #
AR KA E B K2 % GB/T14486-2008) N
(BHEARTRAZRTIMEENE LR
BE)ALFSBEAERER(RE D ER)
B012F FFA—fE - EEBRTAEED
EmCEIHRBLKTE -

BANER

AEBNEPTEBEER BEXREA
B PARE UEREADOTFEREA
FRRENBELAAZEERAMSELET
X ERRMmETEMNIERAL TS
HER AEENITEEX TITHITEREP
MEmMMBELRRE XBLREENE®REBH
FREFE-AM AKBEIREREAR
TBITEBMIF —EBTFZLLERK
B AREERIHAR AKERERS
BEMZEEmmENEBEEERERED
BIERH BRENZEERmEERESZ A
BRERNBTRELME  MEEFH
mif EAEEREMNATFHRERES -

Bt %% o

A

HZE2016F12A31 B IEFE WA A1,626.6
BEABIT K2015F W A1,60625 & 75
TCHEIN20.4B BB T1.3% °

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The mold fabrication segment revenue in 2016 was HK$631.4 million,
representing an increase of HK$42.6 million or 7.2%, from revenue of
HK$588.8 million in 2015. In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Group’s
production lines of ultra-large standard molds commenced operation in
the manufacturing of plastic molds for instrument panels, bumpers and
door panels. Due to longer cycle of mold fabrication, the Group’s molds
in progress in 2015 were delivered in succession at the beginning of
2016, and its financial contribution has become notable in 2016.

The plastic components manufacturing segment revenue in 2016 was
HK$995.2 million, representing a decrease of HK$22.2 million or 2.2%,
from revenue of HK$1,017.4 milion in 2015. The revenue decreased
slightly compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to: 1) a
drop in demand for certain consumer goods under the influence of overall
sluggish economy and spending sentiment; and 2) a decrease in the
sales of mobile phones and wearable devices products in 2016
compared with last year, as affected by the product life cycle of mobile
phones and wearable devices customers.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$456.5
million, representing an increase of HK$37.6 million or 9.0%, from gross
profit of HK$418.9 million in 2015. The increase was mainly attributable
to the enhanced production efficiency driven by continuous automation
development and the increased gross profit margin resulting from
reduced cost pressure due to depreciation of RMB.

Segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication increased from 25.4%
in 2015 to 28.4% in the current year, which was primarily due to the
Group successfully secured a major German automobile brand customer
through the newly acquired German subsidiary in 2014, driving the
Group’s automobile mold business to record continuous growth, thus
improving the segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication to a
certain extent.

Segment gross profit margin for plastic components manufacturing
increased from 26.4% in 2015 to 27.8% in the current year. The increase
in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to enhanced efficiency
resulting from increasing application of automation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$22.7
million, representing an increase of HK$0.5 million or 2.3% from HK$22.2
million in 2015. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
government grants income of the Group by HK$4.0 milion and the
decrease in sales income of scrap and testing charges and clamp
apparatus by HK$3.5 million during the current year.

Other Gains/(Losses) — Net

Net other gains for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$15.4
million, representing an increase of HK$16.9 million, from net other losses
of HK$1.5 million in 2015. The increase was mainly attributable to: 1) the
gains generated from conversion of sales proceeds from US dollar and
Euro-denominated orders; and 2) the exchange gains generated from
revaluation of the closing exchange rate of Euro-denominated loan and
deposits received from customers of mold fabrication segment, as a
result of depreciation of the Euro.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$86.6
million, representing an increase of HK$3.9 milion or 4.7%, from
HK$82.7 million in 2015, primarily due to the increase in performance
bonus of sales staff and transportation expenses which aligned with the
growth in sales.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
HK$181.2 million, representing an increase of HK$34.1 million or 23.2%
from HK$147.1 million in 2015. The increase was primarily due to: 1) the
increase in labour costs resulting from annual salary adjustment and
more high-quality management talents engaged to enhance the level of
our management team; 2) the increase in depreciation due to renovation
of the new office building and acquisition of equipment during the year;
and 3) the increase in advisory and legal service expenses compared with
that of last year as the Group increased enterprise management
consulting investments during the year.

Finance Income — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$2.3
million, representing a decrease of HK$2.5 million or 52.1% from net
finance income of HK$4.8 million in 2015, primarily due to decreased
interest income resulting from falling interest rate of bank deposits and
principal guaranteed available-for-sale financial assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$23.3
million, representing a decrease of HK$4.2 milion or 15.3% from
HK$27.5 million in 2015. The decrease in income tax expense was
primarily due to the fact that the Group’s Suzhou principal plastic
components company obtained the National New and High Technology
Enterprise certificate during the year and enjoyed a preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15%.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was HK$205.7 million, representing an
increase of HK$18.6 million or 9.9% from HK$187.1 million in 2015.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a good financial position during the year. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$348.4 million (31 December 2015: HK$304.4 million). The Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$381.3 million (31
December 2015: HK$320.0 million). The current ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2016 was approximately 1.5 (31 December 2015: 1.5).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$685.0 million (31 December 2015: HK$605.5 million). The gearing
ratio (which was calculated by dividing total loan amount by total equity
amount of the Group) as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
29.1% (31 December 2015: 33.9%). The gearing ratio is lower than that
as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to decreased operating loan as a
result of sufficient fund flows of the Group as well as the increased equity
as a result of profits earned during the year.
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DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:

& & 2 B AR R

AEEEEDHMRRET

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

1R
1E2FR
2ES5F R

2016 2015
FHERT TAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
164,984 137,288
19,810 30,587
14,500 37,464
199,294 205,339

An analysis of the Group’s key liquidity ratios as at 31 December 2016 is

R2016F12A31H  AEEMNETE R E

as follows: SLEESFTMAT :
2016 2015

Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GTERERE (ML) 84 80
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) 2 5 & W sk 188 88 X 8 (f/7£2) 45 45
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B 5N REBRE RS (A iE3) 69 63
Current ratio (Note 4) MBI R (ffit4) 152.2% 149.1%

Notes: Hrat

1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of inventory 1. GFEABXE T ZTFR FHEEE UG BT

divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

3! Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s inventory turnover days were 84 days,
representing an increase of 4 days as compared to that in 2015. The
slight increase in turnover days was mainly due to the fact that finished
goods had been stocked at the end of 2016 by the plastics components
manufacturing segment to meet clients’ demand for products in January
2017.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade receivable turnover days were 45
days, which was comparable to that of 2015.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade payable turnover days were 69 days,
representing an increase of 6 days as compared to that in 2015. The
increase was mainly due to extended payment terms granted by certain
plastic materials and transportation providers to the Group in view of the
Group’s good reputation during the year.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio was 152.2%, which
was comparable to that as at 31 December 2015.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2016 are set out in Note
24(a) to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to the HK dollar, US dollar, Euro and RMB. Exchange rate
fluctuations and market trends have always been of concern to the
Group. Foreign currency hedging of the Group has been managed by our
chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group’s chief executive officer.
In accordance with our hedging needs and the then foreign exchange
situation, the Group’s chief financial officer would collect and analyse
information regarding various hedging instruments and determine stop-
loss thresholds. The Group’s chief financial officer would then collect
quotations from various banks as to the financial instrument and present
such quotations to the Group’s chief executive officer, who would then
evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter into the relevant
hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, save as the Euro-denominated
bank loan, the Group had not entered into any hedging agreement.

Euro declined in 2016, as the European market is one of the key markets
for the Group’s mold fabrication segment, in order to hedge the risk of
depreciation of the payments received from European customers, the
Group’s chief financial officer collected information on hedging
instruments for analysis, having taken into account of the Group’s
business operations, the Group decided to adopt the Euro-denominated
loan to hedge the risk of depreciation of the receivables from Euro-
denominated orders in the future.

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and US dollar. lts operating cash inflows and outflows were
primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. The Group
will closely monitor the exchange rate movements and regularly review
the structure of its balance sheet so as to mitigate the expected
exchange rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group’s major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar, Euro,
HK dollar, and RMB and the Group’s major expenses are principally
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the recent depreciation of RMB has a
positive impact on the Group’s operations. The Group does not enter
into any agreement for RMB hedging purpose. During the year, the
Group adjusted its cash structure in due time due to significant
depreciation of RMB, and cash and bank balances that were primarily
denominated in US dollar and RMB.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company during the
year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary shares and other
reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2016 are set out in
Note 31(a) to the financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2013. Net proceeds from the initial
public offering totalled approximately HK$268.0 million (including the net
proceeds from the exercise of the over-allotment option which took place
on 15 January 2014). During the year, a total of HK$33.0 million had
been applied to the Group’s capacity expansion, research and
development and operation need.

The table below sets out the use of net proceeds from the initial public
offering and the unutilised amounts as at 31 December 2016. All
unutilised proceeds are placed with licensed banks in China and Hong
Kong.
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Use of Proceeds

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BIRE & (&)

% of total
amount
HAEEN
Bkl
Establishing a new business BB ARIEERE
unit specialising in ultra-large BB
standard molds 19%
Upgrading mold fabrication FHRR A BLERE
capabilities 14%
Expanding Shenzhen plastic wRARYFEBA M
components manufacturing BUHE EE R
capacity 22%
Expanding Suzhou plastic T ER N T EB AR 1
components manufacturing BUEERE
capacity 17%
Strategic acquisitions of other 5% B U B8 H 4th 18 B
mold fabricators BIE Ry 11%
Research and development R A 8%
General working capital —REEES 9%
100%

FREREAR

Till 31 December 2016
HZE20165%F12A831H

Utilised Unutilised

Net proceeds amounts amounts
FRi8 18 egA KB A
FE EE EE ]

(HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(B&%rT) (E&BET) (BE&BT)
51.9* 51.9 —

37.1% 37.1 —

59.4* 59.4 —

44.5% 44.5 —

29.5* 16.4 13.1

21.5* 21.5 —

24.1* 241 —

268.0* 254.9 13.1

On 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the sole global
coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) of the global offering,
partially exercised the over-allotment option, pursuant to which the Company
issued 26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of
HK$1.25 per share. The allocation of the net proceeds of HK$32.4 million was
adjusted on a pro rata basis as set out in the section headed “Use of Proceeds” in
the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2013 (the “Prospectus”). As a
result, the net aggregate proceeds were increased from HK$235.6 million to
HK$268.0 million.

The use of proceeds shown above is in line with the intended use as set
out in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue suitable
projects to capture the potential growth of the Group’s business in the
coming years in the manner set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Such source of funding would
be primarily from the net proceeds from the listing, the Company’s own
funds and bank borrowings.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 3,286 full-time employees (31
December 2015: 3,273) and had 621 dispatched workers dispatched to
us from third party staffing companies (31 December 2015: 594).

The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent directors and
employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The Group
has put in place a share option scheme for its directors and employees in
a bid to provide a competitive package for the Group’s long-term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work
ability and personal effectiveness.

We have implemented training programmes for the employees to meet
different job requirements. We believe that these initiatives have
contributed to increased employee productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, we make contributions to mandatory
social security funds for the benefit of our PRC employees that provide
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
housing funds.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2017, the Group will pay close attention to any fluctuations
in the market on a sustained and prudent basis and be ready to response
to any changes in view of intensified market concerns over trade war
caused by the ever-changing political landscape globally, sluggish
economic recovery and foreign exchange fluctuation. Nevertheless, the
Group is highly confident of its development potential in 2017 even if
there is uncertainty to the external environment. The plans for launching
new products in 2017 by the diversified existing customer base has
brought good potential of abundant orders for the Group. As to the
mobile phones and wearable devices, the Group has successfully gained
orders to produce components for products of new models from smart
phone clients, and we are confident that the successively launched new
product models by other clients of high-end electronics consumer goods
in 2017 will boost a stable growth in this segment. With the surging
demand for medical and health care products and the products of new
model researched by customers seeping into the market, the Group’s
business is anticipated to be benefited and achieve a sustainable growth.
In view of the fact that the smart home industry is now at its stage of
booming development and after experiencing the industrial integration in
2016, the Group is confident that the smart home products will embrace
a fast development period. In addition, the promising prospects of
extended application and the long life cycle of smart home products will
bring the Group with greater industrial development potential and more
substantial sales growth. In the automobiles molds segment, the Group
is delivering mold products to customers of German automobile brands
and American electric vehicle brands, the financial impact of which will
continue to reflect in 2017. It is expected that the gross profit margin of
mold segment will continue to be improved benefiting from the positive
effects of gradually enhanced capacity utilization rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

kk}%)‘nj-nﬁﬂ& Tﬁ(n\,\)

Over the years, our Group has always been the most trustworthy partner
of the internationally famous consumer brand leaders, and is also the
first-choice plastics solutions provider of high-technology and innovative
enterprises in Silicon Valley. The development and design capacity in
precision molds enables the Group to provide the customers with one-
stop and customized integrated plastics solutions and attract new
customers from the global high-end electronics consumer market on a
continuous basis. At the end of 2016, a virtual reality hardware product
company under a social network site in America and an American top-
selling smartphone shell brand entered into cooperation with the Group
smoothly, which would lay a more solid foundation for business growth in
2017.

Since 2015, the Group successfully introduced the smart flexible
production line with Industry 4.0 concept to carry out the production of
highly intelligent precision molds, thus boosting the effectiveness and
stability of the production line to a large extent and heightening the quality
standard of plastic molds. The ongoing investment in intelligent and
automatic production not only demonstrates the Group’s innovative
perspective but also enables the Group to stand at the forefront of the
industry. In the future, we will put in persistent efforts to the research and
development of improved mold technology, enhance technical standards
and optimize production process, so as to improve operational efficiency,
thus maintaining the Group’s leading position in the plastic mold industry.
Meanwhile, the Group has completed the construction of the second
plant in Suzhou production base in support of the production volume
brought in by additional orders. In the plant, a mold production line is
additionally equipped based on the original plastic production line. Apart
from enhancing our production capacity to meet demands, the Group
also targeted to develop the Suzhou production base into another one-
stop design and manufacturing base for plastic and mold, so as to further
broaden our customer base in the Yangtze River Delta and promote
service quality in the region.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group had achieved breakthrough and upgrade in industrial
technology brought by technical development, which has convinced us
that the key of industrial achievement lies in innovation, and that an
enterprise, just like society, has to advance with the times so as not to be
eliminated. The Group is seeking to put forward the expansion of
businesses and new market, in particular in the health and medical
devices industry with great development potential, through strategic
investment (which includes looking for start-ups that could generate
synergy with the Group), and to identify outstanding peers in mold and
plastic industry at home and abroad, with the aim to achieve a
complementary effect and enhance mutual competitive edge. While in the
domestic market, the Group will proactively try every potential of
cooperation with domestic leading brands in the future in view of the
tremendous consumer market and the springing-up of numerous high-
end brands of consumer electronics in China, so as to expand the
Group’s regional footprint and fight for sustainable business growth.

Tapping into the mold and plastic industry for more than 30 years, the
Group’s distinguished capacity and technology process in producing
high-precision plastic molds facilitates it to maintain the leading position
in industry. Though it is expected that the international situation will be
volatile, the Group’s professional and extensive industry experience,
diversified customer mix and sound financial position will contribute to a
rapid response to any change in market condition as well as the
identification and the capture of business opportunities. Looking into
2017, the Group is confident that its operating prospect is promising, and
will explore opportunities in the four segments, namely the mobile phones
and wearable devices segment, the medical and health care segment,
the smart home segment as well as the automobiles segment in an active
and prudent manner, thus scaling new heights in the industrial chain of
high-precision plastic molds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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DEVELOPMENTS AS TO DEFECTS TO
LAND TITLE WITH RESPECT TO THE
SHENZHEN TANGJIA PLANTS

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalised terms used in this sub-section shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Prospectus. As the Bureau of Urban Planning and
Land Commission of the Shenzhen Municipality (F3IITR2EIE+ %) is
examining policy proposals regarding the conversion of land use from
high-technology project to commercial use by payment of land premium
for submission for the approval of the municipal government, pursuant to
the instructions of the Land Bureau, TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. (“TK
Technology (Shenzhen)”) will submit the written application to convert the
green-type property ownership certificate into the red-type property
ownership certificate after the promulgation of the relevant policy.

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Properties — Plans to
Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties” of the
Prospectus, the Company has contingency arrangements in place and
will adopt such measures when it is necessary. Such contingency
arrangements include relocating to the Backup Plants by exercising the
Company’s right to request the Backup Plants Landlord to enter into the
formal lease agreement with the Company within 15 days from the
Company’s notice to the Backup Plants Landlord for one or more of the
Backup Plants pursuant to the Pre-lease Agreements. Towards the
expiry of the Pre-lease Agreements, in the event that TK Technology
(Shenzhen) has yet to convert the green-type property ownership
certificate into red-type property ownership certificate, the Company shall
seek to either renew the Pre-lease Agreements or engage another party
for a similar arrangement. For details of the contingency arrangements,
please refer to the section headed “Business — Properties — Plans to
Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties” of the
Prospectus. The Company has renewed the Pre-lease Agreements until
31 December 2019.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

l'

XY E XK F B E R R
BiRR

\II

i=N-b
Be BY

g

ZIRMBBRER LKA QA HE A20144F3
A20BM A B A B HRAEIN AN
A REBRERMATE AFHER®
Z-ARFITREBLZEEREER
BEXfHwERELARas R REE B
HhBE A R A B BOSR B R

U 4R 32 75 B
Tt RISE T REOER - FTRR GRYI)

BRAB(TRITHZLCRIN D #7487 B
REMERRIEAAF UBRAFER

BB AEES -

BIMBRERIZRE - WX —(CERBHERK
METHEMXEARNG S — AT R E

ARARARSZRZY LR TERER
ERER - fEESLHEREREAER
BRTEARREN  BREEBEHEXE
EARRE R A BARISKAERNRF]
L AR Z R ERERZIEXANEER
o UREBERERE - EMHERHES I

JE B i BOT B R CRID DR S 4 AN
EFERRAAFER MARAESXK
BEHEMBRLES — AR LEU

Wzh- BEREZZHENTE  S28A8R
ERIEH - WE-—tBREEARMETA
EVEXRRMEE] —& - ARAREER A
EritHzE BEXEE2019F12H318 »



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 57, is the chairman of the Group. Mr. Li is one of
the founders of the Group and was appointed as an executive director on
28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning of the Group. He has
accumulated more than 33 years of professional experience in plastic
mold fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience in
business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong
Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold fabrication
business into PRC in 1992 and moved the operations to Shenzhen, the
PRC. Mr. Li was elected the “Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year” from
Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several social titles,
including serving as a committee member and the convenor of Hong
Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
the President of Guang Ming General Chamber of Commerce (Industry
and Commerce), a committee member and honorary president of Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon
City District Road Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of
Federation of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice
president of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce, the vice
chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming New District and
the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong in 2000 . In July
1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe Lulan Primary School in
Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained a middle school graduation
certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling shareholder and director of both
Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company)
and Lead Smart Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, aged 55, is the executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has approximately
28 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. He was appointed as an executive director of the Group on 28
March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation and implementation
of the business plan of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
acted as a buyer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May
1985 to August 1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May
1987. From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the
Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible for
operation management for the molding business. He served as the
managing director of the Group since 2000, mainly responsible for
business development and the daily operations of the Group’s business.
Mr. Yung graduated from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree of Science in
Engineering in November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of
Buddhist Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of
Hong Kong with a Master’s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), and the
controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union Development Ltd. (a
substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 56, is the executive director of the Group. He
is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has approximately 33
years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui Leung (a controlling
shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company)
established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been
holding the position of manager, mainly responsible for procurement for
the Group. From August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the
EMBA training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained
a degree of master of business administration from the University of
Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and director
of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controling shareholder of the
Company), the controlling shareholder and director of Normal Times
International Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the
younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director
and chief financial officer of the Group on 27 November 2013. Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as a corporate financial controller
and was mainly responsible for the finance, taxation, audit and investment
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at
Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”)
and served as financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacture
company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong Kong and the U.S..
He has accumulated 29 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1987 with a major in accounting, and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, BBS ur, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 November
2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the University
of Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010 and Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from City University of Macau in September 2012.
He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2015. He was awarded an
honourary doctorate of business administration by the Lingnan University
in November 2015, an honourary doctorate of business administration by
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007 and an
honourary degree, Doctor of the University, by the University of
Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively. He was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal by the Hong Kong SAR Government
effective on 1 July 2011. He was also appointed as Justice of Peace by
the Hong Kong SAR Government effective on 1 July 2005 and won the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997. In November 2014, he
was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was
the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011
to July 2013 and has been the Honourary Chairman of the Federation
since 5 July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung holds positions in a number of
Hong Kong SAR Government advisory committees and is an active
member of many social committees and associations. Dr. Chung is also
the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Dr. Chung had been an independent non-executive director of Kin Yat
Holdings Limited (stock code: 638), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 30 January 1997 to 25 August 2014. He had also been
an independent non-executive director of KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3816), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from 22
September 2012 to 27 August 2015. He is a co-founder and currently a
non-executive director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock
code: 669), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also been
an independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
since 1 April 2014.

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of Sydney, Australia
in May 1988 and a master of commerce specialised in finance from the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1991. Mr. Ho was
awarded as Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered
Financial Analysts in September 1998 and is a CFA charterholder. Mr. Ho
has previously served as Head of China Research, Senior Research
Analyst and Vice President in Institutional Equities in international financial
institutions, including Credit Lyonnais, JP Morgan and HSBC. Mr. Ho
joined HSBC Group since November 2004. In June 2008, he was
appointed as Head of Research, China, serving and acting as the
representative in the Beijing Representative office of HSBC. As at January
2018, Mr. Ho worked as a Hong Kong China Equity sales director for
HSBC. During the period from November 2013 to 31 March 2014, Mr.
Ho had been an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho had also been an
executive director of Fifth Element Resources Limited, a company
previously listed on the Australian Securities Exchange with the stock
code FTH, which has delisted starting from 24 April 2015, and in January
2017, Mr. Ho resigned from the remaining posts in the company. Since
10 October 2014, Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive
director of BBI Life Sciences Corporation (stock code: 1035), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since 5 March 2015,
Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Tsaker
Chemical Group Limited (stock code: 1986), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange starting from 3 July 2015. Mr. Ho has
been the chief financial officer of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 2869), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since 4 August 2015 and one of the joint company secretaries since 27
November 2015, and he has been a director of Guogin Greentown (Beijing)
Asset Management Co. Ltd. (B4t ) EEBIE AR A7), one of
Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.’s subsidiaries since September 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of both the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong and China and has over 33 years of experience in auditing
and providing support for initial public offerings and acquisition
transactions. Mr. Tsang received a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 133),
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (stock code: 460), China
Animation Characters Company Limited (stock code: 1566) and Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231). Mr. Tsang is a
director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand
Stock Exchange; stock code: PGW) and an independent director of Agria
Corporation (formerly listed on the New York Stock Exchange and
delisted on 2 January 2017). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-
executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2078) from January 2013 to January 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 50, joined the Group in July 2014 as corporate
financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and plants finance
operation. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in
the U.S. and was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance
affair. He has approximately 25 years of experience in auditing and
finance. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He has also been a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.

EENESREEE(E

BEX KL 6455 R2013F11 A27H &
ZAEBARRIBIAFRTES - BIFAR
NAIEZLZESEXR REZESRFM
ZEENE -BAEAEBNPTRELR
KESHMEBINAMERA REBEH R
AEXAHBERANBRSREIEIA
BHEAGFEFNLER CAEMBEBPX
AEBENTHERELTE - FAET B
MArgdfres HEIMEeHMree
BRAFEBFARETHMAS?

NP =)
REE e

BEERABTIRBEIMERLETARQF
MBYIENTES: BHERTHESHER
AR (RS :133) NIRBEITREE
ERAB(RMHAIR:460) EEFHEFR
ERAR(BRHDARE:1566) R FLESHE
B (ZER) AR AR (BRMMRSE:231) c Bt
4 IR I8 R PGG Wrightson Limited ( — f& 7 4l
BAREAFRZAETHRF: RHOMRR:
PGW) & {f & &= & 7 Agria Corporation ( & 1A
HMABHFEXSHA EM - R2017F1H28
BIEETBEYES - B hE ZR2013F1 A
E2016F1AEFLGEXEBRER A A
(BRIDSR - 2078) B L IEHITESE ©

SREER

RBREE 5058 0 R2014F7AMARE
CETRAR PSR BEAEB R T
M ISEIE - MAREBAT BETEBRE
FEEHAR AEEEDANEDITE
T HERI2FRA R IELR - HE
BTEARTAENGHEE LB -
H2000F8 A H R ARBFHTFAREAIA

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

@ ® o & OO0 8 00 e e e 8D

S



Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Lui Shit Chun, aged 52, joined the Group and was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group in March 2011, responsible for the overall management of the
plastic components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lui had worked in the plastics industry for approximately ten years
and has worked as the operation manager of Nypro Hong Kong Ltd. Mr.
Lui graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
1994 with a higher certificate in manufacturing engineering (plastics). He
obtained a master's degree in procurement management from the
University of Strathclyde (distant learning) in the U.K. in October 2007.

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 37, is the general manager of the standard
mold business units of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 2002,
and was appointed as the deputy general manger of the Group in
January 2009, responsible for the development of the mold fabrication
business, project management and the management of affairs in respect
of technology, quality and sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr.
Lu was appointed as the general manager of the standard mold business
units of the Group, he is responsible for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high molecular
material machining specialised in mold design and manufacturing. In May
2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of Business Administration in
Executive Management from the Royal Roads University.

Mr. Bergstrom, Carl Thomas, aged 63, was appointed as the Senior
Precision Mold Consultant of the Group on 1 March 2017. Mr. Bergstrom
joined the Group in September 2007, as the general manager of the
performance mold business units of the Group and was mainly
responsible for performance mold business units. Mr. Bergstrom has
more than 36 years of experience in injection molding and mold
fabrication. He was the founder and owner of Toolcad AB founded in
1985, which was sold to Angpanneforeningen AB in 1995. Prior to joining
the Group in September 2007, he was the managing director of Perlos
Precision Molds (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Mr. Bergstrom completed a diploma
in mechanical engineering from Sven Eriksonskolan, Boras in Sweden in
June 1976.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 40, is the chief marketing director of of
the plastic components manufacturing division of the Group. Mr. Lok
joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed as the chief
marketing director of the plastic components manufacturing division of
the Group. He was mainly responsible for sales and marketing affairs of
the plastics components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lok had approximately eight years of experience in plastics
industry. Mr. Lok previously served as the application development
manager of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s

-, degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Lawrence Allan Arquette, aged 50, is the marketing director of
North America of the mold business units of the Group and is responsible
for North American market developing. Mr. Arquette has more than 25
years of experience in injection molding and mold fabrication. He joined
the Group in November 2015. Mr. Arquette was granted the mold maker
qualification by the Ontario government in Canada in June 1994.

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 41, is the internal audit manager of the Group. Mr.
Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was appointed as the
internal audit manager of the Group, responsible for the internal audit of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xing had approximately 13
years of experience in finance and audit. Mr. Xing has held positions such
as assistant accountant in a Wal-Mart China company, senior internal
control consultant in an IBM joint venture in China, finance manager and
internal audit manager in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM
and Hitachi, he was involved in a number of projects including ERP
implementation and SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal
auditor of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC with a
bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in auditing. He also obtained
the Degree of Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The
University of Manchester in November 2013.

Ms. Zeng Xie Qin, aged 42, joined the Group on 1 March 2016 as
Human Resources Director and is responsible for the Group’s and plant’s
Human Resources management work. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked for several enterprises of the FORTUNE Top 500, such as Jabill,
Philips and Mars. She graduated in Jiangxi Nanchang university and
obtained human resource management division intermediate certificate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 54, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa” for further information.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for
the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business. The Board is committed to
strengthening the Group’s corporate governance practices and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2016. Key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarized below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ dealing
in the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors have

confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN
GUIDELINES FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”),
governing securities transactions by employees (including directors or
employees of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company) who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company and/or its securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers, none of
the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and implementing objectives,
policies, strategies and business plan of the Group approved and
delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least one-
third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide spectrum of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent judgment
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. They are invited to
serve on the Board Committees of the Company. Through active
participation at Board and Board Committees meetings, taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in the said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term, subject to
renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years. The appointment
may be terminated by either party by not less than 3 months’ written
notice. Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing the
independent non-executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. In addition, any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office only until the first general meeting after appointment, and
any new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”),
Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Cheung Fong Wa and Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy will
retire at the AGM pursuant to the Articles provisions stated in the
foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board and the
Nomination Committee recommended their re-appointment. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of the above retiring directors as required by the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board is also responsible for implementing policies in relation to
financial matters, which include risk management and internal controls
and compliance, if applicable. In addition, the Board reviews the financial
performance of the Group, approves investment proposals, nomination
of directors to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or through
Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the shareholders of the Company, the duties to act honestly and in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times and to avoid
conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations. Any director may request for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for
performing corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee has reviewed and
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with
the Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to the full
Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest of a substantial
shareholder or a director, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, share issuance and distribution of
dividend, and approval of financial results and corporate strategies. The
Board will review those issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and he/
she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing directors are continually
updated on changes and developments to the Group’s business and on
the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing
process. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for records.

tEERHSE (B

EER SR

EEenEEEAMASREEERTTRRE
BERMRBRAIEMW S KA RREE R
BUAFLHERBERRAEBEFELRENL
EFRABNMEAZSEREREZTSHENTS
M- VAREZS2RBNERRANFTERE
BRITERRIXEENINEZER EENE
AREEANHE CEIXBESA H1TRNH
RRZERE  ARBEMBEEREER
B-EEEeRENRTULFTERAUNERE
BERNEAEENFR -

ESNRFEEXRRE

BENTEEVEREEREZERRER
ABNE UWHRREEEERBRARRNE
BREBUAKRTE2MELHHRRRHEEE
ERERTHNEEFEELER -

REBELEERTA ZTRIEXFEALLME
EREZHAZEFEZEXEBRRUERN
BHMEMBMRE - REEFTSTEHEMN
ERAAEEXGNESNERNBHEES
BEREEEER ORR MR I # & 3%
BRHNER EFHIR—EAFEELER - AR
AxBEREFLFERAREIRE 64
ERBAARAARZ EFAMEBICER
REHETFARDAERE -

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

%



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Up to the date of this annual report, the directors complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous
professional training as follows:

Name of director

ESpE

Executive directors: HITESE :

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEAEE

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TREBEE

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa ok 5 EE S A&
Independent non-executive directors: BUHTESE -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFIELT

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung fa] BB 5 A4

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong A4

Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company
relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations.

Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company
Secretary/the Company’s management on the Group’s business,
operations and corporate governance matters.

Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their
duties and responsibilities, organised by professional firms/
institutions.

Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications
on subjects relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS =5 HFER®

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board & #EZE N & £2016F 12 A31 B L FE RN E i
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company held f{TH A AGIZEZSehEETeLT 2o @3 A
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below: R ARE 2 HEsEEI T

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE BB RH |
Annual |
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BR=E
EEHE Exe ERZEE FHEEE REZEE5E BEKE
Executive directors: HITESF -
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR EE 5/5 N/ATEA N/A N5 B 11 11
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael &3 5 4E 4 5/5 N/A TEH 2/2  N/ATiEHR 1/1 :
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE 5/5 N/A @M N/ATER  N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa SRS E S A 5/5 N/A @M N/ATER  N/ATER 1/1
!
Independent non-executive ~ B IEHITEE - I
directors: '
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFIEL 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/1 11 |
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung AR R & & 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong &L 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ii
In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the b4 EEEBEFNEETE + 7 EIE 7 IEH I;‘rﬁu
independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive fTEERITT —REREHITEEESRE
directors during the Year under Review. M- |

RTEEERERAT —O—~EEH |':5 )



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request. All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Mr. Li Pui
Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once in any financial year and to make recommendation
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become Board
members and makes recommendation to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors.

In selecting candidates for directorships of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, Board diversity, the integrity, experience, skills and professional
knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and effort that the
candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
External recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

—  Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors standing
for re-election at the 2016 annual general meeting; and

—  Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s independent
non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Dr. Chung
Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration proposals of all
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
— Assessment of the performance of executive directors;

— Review and renewal of the service agreements of executive
directors and the appointment letters of independent non-executive
directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of directors and senior
management; and

—  Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2015 and the proposed salary increment
for the year 2017.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including those
members of senior management who are also executive directors, by
band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
FrENAE Bl (8 T)

500,000-1,000,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,5600,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, namely, Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung, all are independent non-executive directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditor before
submission to the Board.

—  To review the relationship with external auditor by reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee has held
3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set
out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and
performed the following major works:

— Review and discussion of the annual audited financial statements,
results announcement and report for the year ended 31 December
2015, the related accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and the relevant audit findings, the report from the
management on the Company’s review of the risk management
and internal control systems, and recommendation of the re-
appointment of the external auditor;

—  Review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions and the
compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided by the
Company’s controlling shareholders;

—  Review of and monitoring the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements, results
announcement and report for the six months ended 30 June 2016,
and the related accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan;

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit plan; and

—  Discussion of the latest amendments to the Listing Rules.

The external auditor attended all the above meetings to discuss with the
Audit Committee members on issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils the
qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this annual report. During the year ended 31
December 2016, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 110 to 116.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December
2016 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditor

Audit services — audit fee for the year ended
31 December 2016

Non-audit services — interim review fee
for the six months ended 30 June 2016

Total: et

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the results
and cash flows of the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal control
systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic goals of the
Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible to set up, maintain
and review the effectiveness of such systems. Management is
responsible for the design and implementation of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to manage the risk. Good risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control systems, as
well as enhance the level of management and risk prevention capabilities,
the Group established its risk management framework in 2016. The risk
management framework includes the Board and its Audit Committee,
senior management and subsidiary managements, in three levels. (Details
refer to the below framework)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body to help
build risk management framework, develop the Risk Assessment Manual,
and conduct risk assessments to determine the nature and extent of the
risk. In the risk assessment process, the professional risk advisory body,
together with the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these risks
according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on the Group,
as well as further development of risk management measures to maintain
the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would report to the
Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee
also ensures that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Review of risk management and internal control
system

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
2016, as well as taking into account the resource, adequacy of staff
qualifications, training and experience of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting and internal audit functions. In addition, the Group also
hired an independent consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Based on the reports submitted by the
independent consultant, the Internal Audit Department and the
management, the Board considered that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Group has its risk management and internal control policies and
procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new requirements,
and explore opportunities for improvement.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”, may follow
the same procedures by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong. The shareholder should state his/her proposals in the written
requisition and submit the written requisition as early as practicable to
enable the Company Secretary to make necessary arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, pursuant
to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/her of his/
her intention to propose a person for the election and a notice duly
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment
of the notices should commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting.

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle
Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee are available to answer
questions at shareholders’ meeting.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and development, financial information
and other information are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year under Review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group published the first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”). The purpose of this report is to
summarize the management approaches, sustainability strategies
and key performances of the reporting year to stakeholders. The
Group is committed to reduce its negative impact on the
environment, to promote the quality and safety of the working
environment and to offer high quality products.

The Group has appointed Allied Environmental Consultant Limited
(“AEC”) as the external consultant to carry out materiality
assessment and investigation on the material aspects of the
Group’s sustainable development and to compile this report.

The Board has approved this ESG Report and would like to
express its sincere gratitude to the management of the Group and
all the staff for their hard work and dedication, in contributing to this
report and to the environmental and social performances
throughout the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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1.1

1.2

Reporting Guideline

The report complies with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The details of Corporate
Governance are set out under “Corporate Governance Report”
section in this annual report.

Reporting Scope

The reporting period follows that of the Group’s 2016 financial year
(1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016), unless otherwise specified.

Unless otherwise noted, this report covers the Group’s major
business, including the headquarters and production facilities of TK
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, TK
Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited and TK Plastics (Suzhou)
Limited.

In terms of the business outside mainland China, the Hong Kong
and Germany offices have a relatively minor impact on the overall
environmental and social aspect, hence are not covered in the
reporting scope of 2016.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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2.1 The Group’s Vision on Sustainable Development

2.1.1Company Profile

The Group is a one-stop integrated plastics solutions
provider, which engages in plastic components mechanical
design, mold design, mold fabrication, plastic components
manufacturing and secondary processing services. The
Group has developed a diversified customer base from
various industries, including automobiles, commercial
telecommunications equipment, mobile phones and wearable
devices, medical and health care, smart home, household
electrical appliances and digital devices.

Currently, the Group has three production facilities located in
Shenzhen, Guangdong province, China, Suzhou City, Jiangsu
province, China and Braunschweig, Germany. Also, the
Group’s headquarter is in Shenzhen and has office in Hong
Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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2.2 Internal/External Stakeholder Engagement 2.2

The Group commits to engage in dialogue with different
stakeholders to gather and respond to more voices and opinions in
order to achieve an overall improvement on business and
sustainability issues. Stakeholder engagement also enables the
Group to identify potential risks that affect its business and to
respectively allocate resources to reduce and mitigate risks.
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AEC held the ESG workshop for The Group in September 2016
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the engagement exercise
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AEC held a stakeholder engagement
meeting with the Group’s management
team
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Management team’s representative presented
their consensus on materiality issues
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2.2 Internal/External Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)

The Group has carried out a number of internal stakeholder
engagements, such as organizing workshops, staff meetings and
various site visits. Staff communication conferences are held by the
Group on a quarterly basis to promote the mutual communication
between employees and the Group’s managerial staff. Additionally,
the Group invited an external consultant this reporting year to
conduct an ESG workshop and internal stakeholders survey. The
engagement of an external consultant helps improve the Group’s
ESG related policies and provide guidance.

The Group believes an effective and regular communication
platform between top management and employee will help unify
the vision for business development of the Group.

Moreover, the Group has also conducted multiple external
stakeholder engagements with government bodies, suppliers,
customers and other institutions to further build communication
channels and exchange views.

On 17 April 2016, the Chief Executive of Hong Kong paid a visit to
the Group’s Science and Technology Industrial Park in Shenzhen
Guangming High-Tech Industrial Park, exploring the highly
automated intelligent simulation and plastics injection production
line. This activity was arranged by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (“FHKI”), aiming to study the development of Hong Kong
outstanding high-tech enterprises, to deepen both Shenzhen and
Hong Kong government and enterprises’ understanding and
communication on industrial development, and to promote the
development of relevant policies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

2.2 Internal/External Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)

1

During the visit, representatives of Hong Kong government, FHKI
representatives and the Group’s management have actively
exchanged views and expressed support on the Group’s
implementation of intelligent production plant. After the event, the
Hong Kong SAR Government considered that the synergies
between Hong Kong and the neighbouring areas in the mainland
should be fully utilized in order to promote “Re-industrialization” of
Hong Kong. It would enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong
economy, and provide diversified career development opportunities
to more young science and engineering talents in Hong Kong.'
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The Group representatives introduce the company’s overview and
development to chief executive of Hong Kong.
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Promoting re-industrialization in Hong Kong
http://www.ceo.gov.hk/chi/blog/blog20160417.html

The chairman and chief executive officer of the
Group introduced the Group’s highest precision
MT1 standard technology to the chief executive
of Hong Kong.
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3.1 The Group’s Environmental Policy

The Group is fully aware of potential environmental impacts arising
from daily business and manufacturing process, including air
pollution, water pollution, hazardous and non hazardous solid
waste generation and greenhouse gas emissions. Therefore, the
Group’s environmental policy strives to implement the following
principles to minimize the impact of its operations on the
environment:

° To comply with all relevant environmental laws, regulations
and standards;

o To ensure that environmental management system of
production facilities comply with the requirements of the
International Organization for Standardization SO
14001:2004;

o To require all employees to undertake their environmental
protection responsibilities and follow internal management
procedures in their daily operations;

° To quantify and monitor the environmental impact of the
Group’s activities, products and services, and to develop and
review specific improvement targets annually;

o To enhance awareness of environmental protection and
resource benefits of employees and stakeholders through
various projects and programs.

Under the framework of ISO14001:2004, the Group has designated
an Environmental Health and Safety (EHS) Committee to oversee
and inspect all environmental policies, to ensure the Group’s
operation complies with laws, and to implement necessary actions
to reduce environmental, health and safety-related risks.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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3.2 Managing Emission

The mold fabrication and plastic injection factory in Shenzhen and
Suzhou are regarded as the key manufacturing bases of the Group.
The major emissions of the factories include:

3.2.1Gaseous and Particulate Emission Control

Gaseous emissions from Plastic Injection, Spraying and
Printing

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are one of the
major gaseous emissions arising from the plastic
injection, spraying and printing process of the Group.
VOC comes from temperature control settings on the
molding process, treatment of gaseous emissions
during spraying processes and treatment and
maintenance of equipment during printing process.

The Group strives to provide a healthier and
comfortable working environment by setting optimum
molding temperatures strictly based on physical and
chemical characteristics of various types of materials
which prevents gaseous emissions from decomposition
of plastic materials due to temperature setting. Similar
to controlling gaseous emissions from plastic injection,
the Group seeks to minimize the gaseous emissions by
analyzing and standardizing spraying operation and
procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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3.2 Managing Emission (Continued)

3.2.1Gaseous and Particulate Emission Control (Continued)
° Dust Control

The Group has adequate exhaust system and particle
collection bags to minimize dust particulates generated
during production into the atmosphere.

° Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

As the Group’s major operations only utilize electricity
supplied by the government, indirect GHG emissions is
the Group’s major emissions. To reduce indirect GHG
emissions, measures such as electricity conservation
initiatives are adopted and discussed in section 3.3.

3.2.2Wastewater Control
Wastewater is generated during the spray-printing process.
The Group centralized all wastewater generation, which is
properly treated to relevant standards before discharge to
government mains.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

3.2 Managing Emission (Continued)

3.2.3Solid Waste Control
The Group classifies waste in terms of hazardous waste,
unrecyclable waste, recyclable waste and food waste. The
Group sets up a waste recycling point within the
manufacturing area to encourage staff to recycle.

Hazardous waste such as lubricant oil is widely used
throughout the plastic injection procedure and equipment
maintenance. The Group provides strict instructions on
proper waste sorting into storage barrels, and regular
collection and disposal of the waste by third-party contractor.

3.2.4 Noise Control

Noise are generated from machines operation. The Group
has developed noise control procedure to reduce noise
impact to the surrounding environment. Noise are monitored
through different monitoring points which are located both
within and outside the manufacturing plant boundary. Every
year, the Group employs external qualified testing agencies to
conduct regular monitoring to ensure noise levels are in line
with relevant standards.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with all laws
and regulations regarding waste gas and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g hERHRE (B)

3.3 EREH
331 EMFERE SN

3.3 Use of Resources

3.3.1 Efficient Use of Electricity

Interior design of main building and manufacturing
plants

The Group utilizes natural lighting in both of the main building
and manufacturing facilities. The Group maximizes the use of
daylight such as to reduce the use of artificial lighting, thereby
reducing electricity consumption.

Air-conditioning System

The Group tries to adopt spot cooling air conditioners in all
manufacturing facilities and employees working places
instead of central air conditioners to reduce electricity
consumption. Spot cooling air conditioning, without the need
to air-condition the entire premise, is regarded as more
environmentally-friendly than central air conditioners. In
addition, friendly reminders are posted on air-conditioning
systems to remind employees to maintain setting at 25
degree Celsius for energy savings.

Education to Employees

The Group always educates its employees to save electricity
and avoid wasting by teaching them measures such as
switching off the lights and air-conditioning when not in use.

3.3.2 Water Resource

As a method of conserving water resource, the Group has
implemented a water re-use system for the plastic-injection
spraying procedure. Water leftover during the spraying
process will go through a treatment process before being
pumped back for re-use again in the spraying process.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

FTRRLEERIMBHEARS

AEENIBREEEWRNR
AEEERBEARYL  &FAR
EfE R B K - R A RA
R emBEEENERARER

=
E°

F‘DW/\/:/L
AEBFEESTHESMRET
MIEEHEEREBEB=AR
e AR R =R R
BRENER -BHZAREHR
TRE‘EE=AGBEZEY M
um#%”*-ﬁ%ﬁ Itk Sh -

TREBRELRBBRIET @ 12
mﬁl%% TRER25F LATR
THETRERUR -

?ﬁ?ﬁ/g\
AEERABEETIHORER
BRERE BEXEFHAE W=
FAEEE -

332 KEIR

BT HAMGHBK  AEBERT
EBEREKBAEREERLS B
ﬂ%@%ﬁﬂ@ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%v
THREREEBREFBEFER-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

3.3 Use of Resources (Continued)

3.3.3 Use of Raw Materials
The Group established requirements in managing the use of
raw materials and packaging materials. The Group has set up
monitoring targets for the use of materials and appointed its
Environmental Management Committee to monitor the usage
of different departments in order to improve material use and
thereby reducing waste.

In terms of packaging materials, the Group communicates
with clients and seeks for the possibility of recycling and
reusing its packaging material. Additionally, the Group
encourages its employees to reduce waste generation by
enhancing the use of recyclable or reusable materials if
possible and to avoid the use of disposable materials.

3.4 The Environment and Natural Resource

An Environmental Management Committee has been formed to
conduct environmental impact assessments to new projects. It
aims to identify possible environmental factors, and determine the
scale and magnitude of their impact on the environment and natural
resources. Actions and Measures are carried out by the Group
when environmental risks are identified in order to minimize adverse
impacts on the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRE = LERWmSE (E)

4.1 High Quality Product

The Group stringently monitors the procurement process to ensure
quality of the suppliers meets the requirements of the Group so as
to produce high quality products for customers.

41.1 Supply Chain Policy
Supply chain and procurement management are essential to
the Group’s sustainable operation. A supply chain
management system has been developed by the Group’s
purchasing department, and it is in place to choose suppliers
according to their social responsibility performance, which in
turn helps monitor their quality.

An annual audit checklist and report is formulated by the
procurement department for reviewing the Group’s major
suppliers. Site audit is also carried out annually for its main
suppliers to evaluate their social responsibility performance.
The Group will immediately cease the cooperation once child
labour, forced labor or other serious violations of labor laws
and regulations are discovered. If suppliers are discovered to
be in violation of any circumstances after the site audit
procedure, the Group will establish and propose remedial
actions and measures to ensure that the problem is handled

properly.
In the forthcoming year, the Group will continue to work

closely with suppliers to further improve the social
responsibility performance of its upstream supply chain.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

AEERRBEBIETEBICH BRE
ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%lxx BH
HEHBEEER -

411 ESE R
TEMHEELREETEHAS
EMAFEEBIEFESE - AL
BHRERR THEEESE R
SR EBEHREREALSETRIE
PREMEEN UEREHERNE
?o

AEBRNEESFEHENFE
EREZEEMBE  AEBH
EEEELTHE—RBRIBERZ 7T
HELAEETRIE - FHIBHE
EEG=) ﬁ%il o838 & Bk H
MEEERSEERNER A
SEEVAEILEAERE &%
EREREZERE BHERD
MEWERETMERBR &
SESRETRTAUIERE &
REEGINEREZLEERE -

ERR—F AKEGEBEH
EEETAE LWE—FRAN
ELHHEENEEREERR -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g kERdmE (&)

4.1 High Quality Product
4.1.2Product Responsibility

The Group is devoted to provide high quality products and
abide by the local quality safety standards. The Group has
established mold production control and verification
procedures to ensure the production process achieve a
standardized management. The Group stringently complies
with the highest quality standard which enables that all the
products manufactured complies with ISO 9001 Quality
Management System.

The Group respects intellectual property rights. The
“Confidential Management System” has been formulated to
protect the intellectual property rights of both customers and
interested parties. The Group’s technical patents are strictly
abided to the “Patent Management System” to safeguard its
intellectual property rights, where provision of information or
intentional information leakage to any third parties or
unauthorized parties is strictly prohibited.

The Group implemented a comprehensive quality
management and developed quality assurance policies and
procedures to oversee its manufacturing process. The Group
frequently monitors product quality and strives to improve
working efficiency. Before delivering its products to the
market, all finished products went through different stages of
quality inspection to verify its reliability and compatibility.
Further to its stringent production procedure, the Group
meets customer expectation and gains the trust of customers
by providing an intimate after-sales and quality management
services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g hERHmE (8)

41 BEER @
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4.1 High Quality Product (continued)
4.1.2Product Responsibility (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group’s operation has
complied with relevant laws and regulations of product
responsibility relating to health and safety of customers and
the public, advertising, labelling and information privacy
matters.

4.2 Create a Favorable Working Environment
4.2.1Attract and Recruit Talent

The Group recognizes that having a good employer —
employee relationship is crucial to its business operation. As
employees play a significant role in the Group’s operation,
creating a pleasant and healthy working environment are
beneficial to the Group’s growth. Hence, the Group is
committed to put the well-being of all employees at top
priority and to provide adequate support to suit employees’
need.

The Group is committed to:

o Prohibit the employment of child, forced or compulsory
labor in any of its operations; Don’t accept any
suppliers employing child, forced or compulsory labor;

o Respect the basic human rights of employees, treat
employees equally and prohibit any insulting personality
behavior or provision of the act of discrimination;

o Offer a safe and hygienic working and living
environment, and ensure the employees’ health and
safety;

o Offer reasonable wages and benefits and working
conditions, and continuously improve them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g hkERdmE (&)

4.2 Create a Favorable Working Environment (Continued) 4.2 B #F 8 T ERE @)

4.2.1Attract and Recruit Talent (Continued) 421K 5| IR A 7 (&)

The Group established the “TK Compassion Fund” since
2011, which aimed at helping employees with special
difficulties by providing financial support and enabling
employees to feel the care from the Group and other staff
during difficult times. The Fund was raised by the Group’s
labor union, and sourced from company and employee’s
donation. For the reporting year, a total of RMB98,000 has
been given to 3 employees. Since the establishment of TK
Compassion Fund, a total of 13 employees have benefitted
from the RMB350,000 donations.

4.2.2Labour Standard

The Group respects both labour rights and human rights, in
which both social responsibility management system and
recruitment management system are established in
accordance with SA8000 Social Responsibility Management
System to protect employees’ freedom of choice and
prohibits any forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g hERHRE (B)

42 RN IERE @

4.2 Create a Favorable Working Environment (Continued)

4.2.2Labour Standard (Continued) 42255 BN ZE B ()
Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination Policy TR R IR EE
The Group encourages equal opportunities in the workplace AEBRTITHESHREETE S 7fA%
regardless of gender, nationality, race, religion, sexual @ TR BE Bk
orientation, age, social class or disability. HOMEER CFE LR EE
REHE I —HRRAC -
Harassment and Abuse B RERT

Any behaviors include but not limited to threat, abuse,
exploitation and sexual harassment behaviors (including
gesture, language and physical contact) are prohibited in the
Group’s working environment, dormitory provided by the
Group, and within site premises.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
related labour laws and regulations relating to preventing
employment of child, forced labour and illegal immigrants.

Since a number of employees working at the Shenzhen
production plant come from various provinces in China, the
Group understands the importance of feeling at home and
having a sense of belonging for these colleagues. Therefore,
during the reporting year, the Group has undertaken to
furnish new recreational facilities at the employee dormitory.
Furthermore, a gardening area is provided for employees for
planting, further enhancing a sense of belonging and at the
same time beautifying the local community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Employees Benefit: Continuously Improving the Employee’s Living Environment
ETITRA HEXEEINERRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g hERHRE (B)

4.2 Create a Favorable Working Environment (Continued) 4.2 B #F8 TERE @)
4.2.3Upholding Corporate Integrity A2 ELEBE

In order to maintain the Group’s sustainable development, a
moral and business code of conduct has been established. It
allows the Group to fulfill its social responsibilities and
establishes a high standard of moral awareness to its
employees. All employees are to abide by the Group’s moral
code of conduct, which strictly forbid any person or
department to act in any form of corruption, extortion and
misappropriation of public funds.

The Group also prohibits employees from bribery and receipt
of inappropriate interests in the name of the Group or of the
individual, from parties including clients, government officials
and related business parties or individuals. The Group
organizes regular staff training in relation to anti-corruption
and internal control to enhance awareness and understanding
of the code of conduct.

During the reporting period, the Group’s operation has
complied with the anti-corruption, blackmail, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering policies and relevant
laws and regulation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RRE g kERHEE)

4.3 Development and Training 4.3 EZEBE AT ERE

To keep pace with the Group’s sustainable development, the NEEBMNDIESE I T EReH - #E

Group is devoted to develop and strengthen employee capacity in Rm BN TIEEX  HE)ANERF

order to meet with different job requirements. BESERE-

The Group has held more than 500 internal training activities for AN PE 3 F 2 0 7N £ [F 2R 9 R 38 500

employees to participate on their own will during the reporting year. BMAIPEZINEBEELE T ERHEER
Eﬁi o

In order to strengthen the role of managers in the Group, trainings AREEATNREEAE AR E

are provided in terms of working philosophy, time management and BN TIEES REEEMBER

leadership skills. EERESEHANEEARRT
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Through learning management theories and practicing during the AREEREREE2EERIER I ETT

lessons provided by the Group, employees are able to solve 55 F8 I ERRRE R E T E

practical business problems and improve time management and IRAEEESIERE N MMEER G

leadership skills.
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4.4 Value Employee’s Safety

The Group regards safe production as one of its core missions. The
Group’s staff and all the matters related to health and safety are the
main concerns of the Group. To safeguard the rights and interests
of employees, the Group implemented health and safety measures
and production principles to guide every production process in
order to improve the working environment and to take care of
employee’s health and safety. An EHS policy, plan and
management objectives have been formulated by the Group in
accordance with the national laws, regulations and policies. The
EHS Management Committee of the Group develops safety
production control procedures, and sets out relevant education and
training programme annually to enhance employees’ safety
awareness.

The Group carries out occupational health and safety measures to
monitor and evaluate occupational safety issues on an annual
basis. The Group not only provides protection equipment to
employees and adequate training to ensure the safety of their
operations, but also employs qualified institutions annually to check
and ensure staff's health and safety. Additionally, warning signals
and occupational safety reminders are posted on the conspicuous
places of sites with occupational danger to remind the operators
when equipment are in used. At the same time, the Group
standardizes the labelling, storage and packaging and other
operational management of chemicals in chemicals warehouse in
order to prevent chemical leakage, fire and other incidents which
would cause adverse impact to the environment and health and
safety of employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

4.5 Caring for the Society

The Group has a motto of “from the society, for the society”, in
which it devotes to paying back the society and strives to help
those in need. By means of utilizing network of the Group and its
staff, the Group actively deploys resources into the community.
Through organizing and sponsoring volunteer activities, allocating
resources into different sectors, funding different activities and the
establishment of the TK Compassion Fund, the Group takes an
active role in assuming the social responsibility and making
contribution to the society.

Community engagement is an indispensable factor of the Group’s
sustainable development. The Group believes that community
engagement activities enable employees to have a better
understanding of the local community and their needs, and help the
Group recruits and retain staff. The Group provides resources and
support, shares knowledge and skills, and also gets involved into
various fund-raising programs such as support for multiple
community projects and disaster relief work to help the community
in need.

The Group believes that employees could further extend its
capability and development through participating in community
activities. In this reporting year, the Group has held more than 23
programs and activities that served the development of the
community.

During the reporting year, the Group has donated and raised funds
for different organizations, associations and schools. The Group
raised a total amount of about HKD $2,165,000 to aid people in
need.
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Environmental Social and Govemance Report (continued)

4.5 Caring for the Society (Continued)

Participated in the 2016 Oxfam Trailwalker

Oxfam Trailwalker is one of the largest fund raising sporting events
in Hong Kong. The purpose of this event is to support Oxfam’s
various poverty alleviation and emergency relief projects in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Africa and other regions of Asia. This is the
fifth time the Group participated in the Trailwalker, with a total of 16
employees from different departments forming into four teams to

take part in this challenge.

The Group believes that through participating the Oxfam
Trailwalker, whether an individual team member or the team as a
whole, would demonstrate mutual support, foster perseverance,
and promote the spirit of never giving up.
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All teams have completed the trailwalkers 100 km challenge and successfully raised more than HK $32,000.
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5 AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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2016 Strategic Supplier
Faurecia Interior Systems

Mold Informatization Project Benchmarking
Customer
Eman Software Technology Co., Ltd
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Supplier Excellence Award
Whirlpool
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Awards Organizers
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The Novel Utility Model Patent Certificate
(An Ox Horn Pouring Mold Ejecting Device)
State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC
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2016 Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
Upgrading and Transformation
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
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The report follows the framework of the Stock Exchange’s ESG
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. The general disclosures are listed in the following table with

related chapter link.
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The Board have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the audited
accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. Principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 by principal activities and places of operation is set out
in Note 5 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which includes a discussion on principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, particulars of important events affecting the
Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are also set
out in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 117.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10.0
cents per share, amounting to a total of HK$82,660,000 in aggregate, for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 19 May 2017. The proposed final dividend is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The final dividend,
if approved, is expected to be paid on 2 June 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be held
on 10 May 2017, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 4 May 2017 to 10 May 2017, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders of the Company
must ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 18 May
2017 to 19 May 2017, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, unregistered shareholders of the Company must
ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 17 May 2017.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years is set out on page 196. The summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 20, 22, 23 and Note 33(a) to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 176 to 178, page 192, and pages 120 to 121 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$506,286,000 (2015:
HK$478,717,000), of which HK$82,660,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 were around HK$2,165,000 (2015: HK$2,060,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Cheung Fong
Wa and Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy will retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 33 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 34 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 20 December
2016, which may be terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2016, unless terminated by either party
giving not less than one month’s notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and Note 32 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year under Review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and
the objects of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company and associated
corporation which were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() Long position in the shares of the Company

BEEEHN

AEREYEITYIFEABARB 2K
EMEEXHFOBZERRTRZEH -

EERRG - HERORE
% oh i) 1 35

R2016F12A31H RAREEZFR AR
A MR A BB (D &3 AR (D
EERBEAFRHEGRI(ESRBEK
Bl]) E3B2 G EEMN Z IGFTIEM SR M AR
i KZARBEESFAMNEGARRQF KB
RETMEROT -

(i) AE2TIRBHOEFE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares the Company*
RAEQBHBA
E=pnR B EEME KRe#E REBDLE"
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations 507,920,000 61.45%
(Note 1)
FPHRAE(FDRELE] REGEEER (M 1)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation 53,760,000 6.50%
(“Mr. Yung”) (Note 2)
SEALEETSEED REHEE R (M 2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee”) Interests in controlled corporation 51,840,000 6.27%
(Note 3)

FREAEE(FREEE]D)  REGDEEER (K3
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Notes:

These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix”) (for
421,620,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead
Smart”) (for 86,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of
Eastern Mix is owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, respectively; and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by
Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr.
Li, he is deemed to be interested in these shares held by these two
corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer
Union”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.
3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal

Times”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

(ii) Long position in the underlying shares of the

Company (physically settled unlisted equity
derivatives) — share options
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the underlying shares

Company’s over the Company’s

underlying shares issued share

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests interested capital®

HERGEE QT

BREENAQT ERITREN

EEpE 5 EEMtE HERGHE BB

Mr. Li Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.36%
MR AL EnEAA

Mr. Yung Beneficial owner 1,860,000 0.23%
Sl BEREAA

Mr. Lee Beneficial owner 1,800,000 0.22%
FTRBEE EnEAA
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Note: The underlying shares stated above refer to the share options offered by the

(iii)

Company to the directors on 29 December 2014. These share options were
subsequently accepted by the directors on 5 January 2015. Details of these
share options as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are set
out in the below section headed “Share Option Scheme” and Note 21 to the
financial statements.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares involved divided by
the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

Long position in the shares of associated
corporation of the Company

Name of associated = Capacity/Nature of

Name of director  corporation interests

E=pnE HEEE AR B EEMtE
Mr. Li Eastern Mix Beneficial owner
TR EE &R EnfEBA

Mr. Yung Eastern Mix Beneficial owner
HEE &R E=mBAA

Mr. Lee Eastern Mix Beneficial owner
FRIBRE &R EnEAA

The percentage represents the number of shares involved divided by the
number of issued shares of the associated corporation as at 31
December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the following corporations had interests in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company REANTRIRONTFE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares in the Company*
RAE DB HEL
REREE B REMtE KRG & E RERD L
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 421,520,000 50.99%
SR (Hfat1) EnlEAA
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 86,400,000 10.45%
2B (M at1) BEmA A
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 53,760,000 6.50%
B (Hfzt2) EnlEAA /
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 51,840,000 6.27% ‘f
s (K E13) BEmEA A
Value Partners Group Limited (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 66,824,000 8.08% \
BREEEERAGE (Hit4) XA B s |
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund  Beneficial owner 66,386,000 8.03%
BEmEA A
Notes: B et -
1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the 1. UKEERRLZEZ B R EX[EEFRRG

interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures”.
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3. The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures”.

4. These 66,824,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Limited were deemed to be interested in
these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other
than the directors of the Company whose interests and short position are
set out in section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (including employees, executives or
officers, directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to
the long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract
and retain high caliber employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the

Company’s listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and 9.68%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting. A grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Option). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determined by the directors, save that such a period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject to
the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share Option
Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.
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Details of the movements of share options under the Share Option A&, £20164E12 431 H Ik F & - B8 E #E 5t

Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: BT HERESHFEBOT
Number of options
BREZAR

Outstanding Exercised/  Outstanding Exercise

as at Granted cancelled/ as at price per
Name or category of 1 January during lapsed during 31 December share Exercise
option holder Date of grant 2016 the year the year 2016 (HK9) period

R20165F ERTRE/ R2016 %

BRESEA 1818 il -V 128318 BRITKEE

A ER REHBH RIT EREH X% RITHE (B ) TEH

Executive directors

HBITES
Mr. Li 29 December 2014 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000 1.61 Note 1
FHREE 201412 A29 8 Htatt
Mr. Yung 29 December 2014 1,860,000 - — 1,860,000 1.61 Note 1
k4 2014512 A29H gz
Mr. Lee 29 December 2014 1,800,000 — — 1,800,000 1.61 Note 1
FREBEAE 201412 A29 8 gz
Total
BE 6,660,000 - = 6,660,000

Notes: Hat -

1. The exercise period of share options granted is from 29 December 2014 to 28 1. ERHERENITIEHB2014F12H29H &
December 2017, both dates inclusive. 201712 H28H (BEEREMA) -

2. The number and/or exercise price of share options may be subject to adjustment 2. MR DA ETHR AARFETHRAZEEE

in the case of rights issue, bonus issue, or other changes in the Company’s B AIERIES A R RKITIE B T
share capital. FHEE o
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company (on
behalf of itself and the Group) dated 29 November 2013 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure their
respective associates not to directly or indirectly engage in any business
in competition with the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant
information on the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance with the
terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they have fully
complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed the confirmations
from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed has been complied
with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the
directors confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed annual
caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transacton T H & H|ZEIEREFER 5 N20164%E 2
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2016: EFEIEREERRL 55 :

Actual Transaction

No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
w5 BBRZ BE AL FELR BERRZE

RMB'000  HK$'000 ~ RMB'000  HK$'000
ARBTT TAL ARETRT TAR

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement TK Technology Holdings Limited 120 144 120 144
(“TK Technology Holdings”)
BAEME M RIBBEERERAA
(RIMEER]
2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop A TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,396 2,887 2,320 2,722
Lease Agreement
RYERBEAREE R & RLRHR ORI
8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop B TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,326 2,802 2,253 2,644
Lease Agreement
AINERBEBREE W= ROTRBR ORI
4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop C TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,386 2,875 2,310 2,710
Lease Agreement
RANERBECREE HZ RIRHEE ORI
B Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop D TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,254 2,716 1,071 1,257
Lease Agreement
RYIER B E DIRE & & FOIRB ORI
6 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop E - TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,775 2,139 1,649 1,935
Lease Agreement
RYIE K BB ERRME & 7 & RO R ORI
7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop F - TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,987 2,394 1,923 2,256
Lease Agreement
RYERXBEFREE R IR ORI
8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop G TK Technology (Shenzhen) 4,005 4,825 3,878 4,550
Lease Agreement
RINE R EGRE & & FOTRB ORI
9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop H TK Technology (Shenzhen) 3,791 4,567 2,231 2,618
Lease Agreement
RYPER B EHRE & & FOTRHR ORI
10 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone A TK Technology (Shenzhen) 7,591 9,145 7,233 8,485

Workshop J Lease Agreement

AIERBEIRARRERE IR

11 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone B TK Technology (Shenzhen) 10,520 12,675 6,274 7,361
Workshop J Lease Agreement

ANEZBEJRBREERE RITRRORID

12 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) 543 654 517 607
Block A Lease Agreement
RYEZXBMEARBEHE BRI ORI

E
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No.

13

14

15

(1)

Connected Transaction

BEXZ

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking
Space Lease Agreement

RYNEF R EE A E HhE

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm
Land Lease Agreement
RYNBERBEREEE HZE

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football
Field Lease Agreement
AIBERBE B K5 EE

Connected Person

BEAL

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
RIR BRI
TK Technology (Shenzhen)
FOTRHR GRIID
TK Technology (Shenzhen)
FOTRHR GRIID

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEeHmEE(E)

Actual Transaction

Subtotal of lease agreements

ME =&t

Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 22 December 2015 (the “Hong Kong
Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK Technology
Holdings as landlord and the Company as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”) with
an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term of two
years commencing on 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31
December 2017 at a monthly rent of HK$12,000. The property is
used as the principal place of business for the Group in Hong
Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement, the Company may terminate the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement by giving not less than one month’s prior written notice
to the landlord or by paying one month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and
27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology
Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is
thus a connected person of the Company.

Annual Cap Amount
FELER BERXZHE

RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB'000  HK$'000
ARETTT TET AR®TFR TAET
531 640 514 603
418 504 404 474
198 239 192 225
40,841 49,206 32,889 38,501

(1) EREEHR

RIMBEEBE(EA¥XE)HEARRF
(EBEM A) R2015F12 A22 8 5]
vHERZ(EAEHERZ]) RA
BB AEES L EL91-5015
BEHIT¥ P OBEIEF195F B W
ME(EEWED BELH7T767TFEH
Ko HEME 52016F1A1HER
2017512 A31 B Em + A %&12,000
BIL e ZWEWBIEAEEER BN
FTELEEMIY - NESHEHZ IR
W ARRABEREREEFEHTIR
—ERAEXEEBM  KMEEIF
—EARAmAeKRIEESHERZ: -

RIBESEEAYMEERAR  BAZF
MRAE FEERTRBALES
M #Z  B45.0% ~ 28.0% }27.0% ° 1R
BETRA BIREEEAZHR
EE -FRERTERBEENBEA
T WMAEARRBNBEEAL-

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

o
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(2)

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual rent of
the Hong Kong Premises in 2016 amounted to HK$144,000,
payable by the Company in advance on the first day of each
calendar month. The annual rent payable to TK Technology
Holdings was determined at after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.

Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between TK
Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Precision Plastics”) and YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD
Mold”) as tenants respectively:

(2

RIFZEEHERZ 2016 FFBWE
K FEH AB144,0008 7T AR AR E
BREHBELAIN BHFRIBK
ESENFRENDEEERERRINS
DRIHEREET - ARAINBILYE
HEMTEEIESHERZNIER
BAFEE KEBSHEREETH
ek THETME -

RIERBEEE =

RIMBECRID(ERFE)BRIT
BRACRIDERARA (TR IEACK
YD~ RITHETZ ORI AR A A
([RTHENEER ) RAERERCRID
BERAB(THRER]D (ERSEAHEA)
2 RIRT S T HIEE 7%

Parties to the

Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
[k E HED: ik 1=R- HEME £ A
(RMB)
(NE#)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant  TK Technology 1 January 2016 Workshop A, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 199,639

Workshop A Lease (Shenzhen) as Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017

Agreement landlord and TK Mold Community, Gongming Sub-

RIERBEAREE

&

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Workshop B Lease
Agreement

RIEZBEBREE

1%

(Shenzhen) and YD
Mold as tenants
FOTRHE ORI
(EREF)EFI
EEFIDRER
BE(EREMEA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK Mold
(Shenzhen) as tenant

1 January 2016

BTRHE (R
(EA%EE)EBERT
BECRI) (EA
ELiUN)

20161 A1H
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District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
BRI T BRI N T
MERBERMERIRE
IxE(—HBEAR

Workshop B, Phase 1 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

REIRYIT AR ARAEE
RERERHRRIRE
I#E(—H)EEBR

2016F1 A1HZE
2017612 4318

1 January 2016 to
31 December 2017

193,872

2016F1A1HZE
2017412 B31H
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Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
ik HETNE 1= B 5 HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AR#)
|
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant ~ TK Technology 1 January 2016 Workshop C, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 198,816
Workshop C Lease (Shenzhen) as Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
Agreement landlord and TK Mold Community, Gongming Sub-
(Shenzhen) as tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
FIERBECHREE IR R 201651418 REIRYIT R RAREE 20161 A1HZE
i (EREFX) BRI MEREXHERINEK 2017412 4314
BECRY) (EA I#E(—H)EmECRK |
AMA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant  TK Technology 1 January 2016 Area No. 2, Workshop D, Phase 1 of 1 January 2016 to 92,147 |
Workshop D Lease (Shenzhen) as TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
Agreement landlord and TK Mold Community, Gongming Sub- |
(Shenzhen) as tenant District Office, Guangming New |
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
AIEZREDRAE RIRECRI) 201651 A1H RERIITRANERREE  201661A18% |
ik (EREF)ERT REREXMRRIREK 2017412 4310 ‘
EEACRI) (EA I5E(—H)BmEDR2E
EHA) l
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant ~ TK Technology 1 January 2016 Area Nos. 1 and 2, Workshop E, 1 January 2016 to 141,949 !
Workshop E Lease (Shenzhen) as Phase 1 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2017 |
Agreement landlord and TK Mold Tangjia Community, Gongming |
(Shenzhen) as tenant Sub- District Office, Guangming l
New District, Shenzhen City, the ';E'"
PRC 4
RYBERBEERBE RIRER ORI 201651 A 1A RERNTRANERREE  201661A18% |‘
ik (ER¥EF)ERT RERERMRIIBE 201746124318 |
BACRI) BB TxE(—HBEERTSE - 257 '
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant ~ TK Technology 1 January 2016 Workshop F, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 165,547 |
Workshop F Lease (Shenzhen) as Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
Agreement landlord and TK Mold Community, Gongming Sub-
(Shenzhen) as tenant District Office, Guangming New

District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RAIERBEFREE IR R 201651418 REIRYIT AR ARAEE 2016F1A1HE

= (EBEX)EFRT PEEERHEERTIRE 2017412 A31H
HECRI) (EA I£E(—HBmEFR
A A)

RTEE(ERERAT —O—AEEH F; )
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Agreement

&

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Workshop G Lease
Agreement

RIEZMEGREE
1%

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Workshop H Lease
Agreement

RNEZBEHREE
3%

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Zone A Workshop J
Lease Agreement

FYNERMEIRAR

ME

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Zone B Workshop J
Lease Agreement

RIEZBEJRBE
ME

Parties to the
Agreement

[E L] EEE

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

1 January 2016

RILRE CRYI)
(fEBEF)ERT
BELEE (A
EAA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics and
TK Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenants

1 January 2016

FOLEHE ORI
(EREF)EFI
*HE' /EE?@&%}I
EAORID) (ER
SN

20161 A1H

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

1 January 2016

FOLEHE CRIN)
(EREF)EFI
*HE' /EE;)a ( )Eﬁ
ERA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

1 January 2016

ROTRE GRYN)
(ERZET)ERT
AT (fF R
BA)

20161 A1H
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Date of Agreement

Leased Property
HEME

Workshop G and Mezzanine Level of
Workshop G, Phase 2 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

LRI L BRI N A T
RERERMRRIFR
T¥E(CHBECR G
RE

Area Nos. 5 and 9, Workshop H and
Mezzanine Level of Workshop H,
Phase 2 of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub- District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC

LRI L BRI N R T8
RERERMRRIFR
TR (ZH)BEHRE
9%  HIRIRE

Zone AonLevel 4,5,6and 7,
Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

LRI R TR N T
RERERMRIIFR
I(R(CHHEIRES 5
6 7TEAR

Zone B on Level 1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9 and
10, Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

REIRYIT R ERAREE
PERBEREERFIRE
IR CCHBE IR
%$1-2:3-4:5-6:8-9:10
BE

Term Monthly Rent
8 A
(RMB)
(AR#)
1 January 2016 to 333,771
31 December 2017
20161 A1HZE
201712 A31H
1 January 2016 to 192,005
31 December 2017
20161 A1HZE
201712 A31H
1 January 2016 to 622,372
31 December 2017
20161 A1HZE
2017412 A31H
1 January 2016 to 539,936

31 December 2017

2016F1A1HE
201712 A31H



Agreement

&

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Dormitory Block A Lease
Agreement

RNEZBEARES

HE

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Parking Space Lease
Agreement

RNEZHEENEE
1%

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Farm Land Lease
Agreement

RINEZME R
3%

HHEE

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant
Football Field Lease
Agreement

RIERBE -5
ME

Parties to the
Agreement Date of Agreement
HETNE 1= B 5
TK Technology 1 January 2016
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK

Precision Plastics and
TK Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenants

FOLEHE ORI
(EREF)EFI
BETB RET
EAORI) (ER
EAA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology 1 January 2016
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics and
TK Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenants

ROLRHE ORI
(EREF)EFI
)(H El /EE ?@ N % ;I
BACRI) (EAR
EAA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology 1 January 2016
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

ROTRHR ORI
(EREF)ERIT

THEE 2 (fE B
BA)

20161 A1H

TK Technology 1 January 2016
(Shenzhen) as
landlord and TK
Precision Plastics as
tenant

ROTRH ORI
(EREF)EFI
BELEE (A
EBA)

20161 A1H
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Leased Property
HEME

Dormitory Block A of TK Technology
Park, Tangjia Community,
Gongming Sub-District Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERYIT AR AR EE
HERBEREBETIRE
TXEARES

Parking Space of TK Technology
Park, Tangjia Community,
Gongming Sub-District Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERYIT AR AREE
HERBEREBETIRE
TEESEN

Farm Land of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC

LRI T E BR AT I N R T8
MEREXHEBRINEK
IXEERH

Football Field of TK Technology
Park, Tangjia Community,
Gongming Sub-District Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERITRARERAEE
MERFERULRRTIRE
ITXERKS

RIKEEZER)ERAF

Term Monthly Rent
8 A
(RMB)
(AR#)
1 January 2016 to 43,050
31 December 2017
2016F1A1AZE
201712 A31H
1 January 2016 to 44,250
31 December 2017
2016F1A1AZE
201712 A31H
1 January 2016 to 34,800
31 December 2017
20161 A1HZE
2017%12 A 318
1 January 2016 to 16,500
31 December 2017
2016F1H1RE
20174128318
ZO—R"EFH

gl
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are
entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
by notifying the landlord one month before the expiration of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, and TK Mold
(Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a
right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the event that the
landlord intends to sell the subject properties during the term of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any renewal
thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics and YD Mold of the intended sale in writing and TK Mold
(Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a
right of first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if
TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold do not
accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such notice. TK Mold
(Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are further entitled
to terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by
giving one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr.
Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK
Technology (Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to
procure TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is an
associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected
person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that, having
taken into account of, among other things, the title defects of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder) are fair
and reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate. Our
directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.
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Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement and
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements (collectively the
“Connected Lease Agreements”) have been aggregated for the
purposes of determining the category of continuing connected
transaction that the Connected Lease Agreements shall fall into
under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its
business; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS S RS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 32 to the BBt H X ZHI B A B R KR M 5132
financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party transactions 7N ‘A B # 2R 8 £2016F 12 A31 B It F &
for the year ended 31 December 2016, it has complied with the BB H X 52 RBIE FMBEBFE14AZEST
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing &R FE -

Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
=EFemEsE (&

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 39.7% of the Group’s total sales and
the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
13.1% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 15.5% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 5.3% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial interests in the
Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to above.

RECTIFICATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROCEDURES
FOR THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF
OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES AND HAZARDS

At the time of listing, the Company had non-compliance in relation to
procedures for the prevention and control of occupational diseases and
hazards. Up to the date of this annual report, the Company had rectified
the non-compliance in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares entered
into by the Company during the Year under Review or subsisted at the
end of the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and a controling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are
advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

=
pwc

To the shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to
195, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to Impairment of trade
receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZER WA (8)

Key Audit Matter
BHRETER

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Note 4.1(b) — Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions and Note 17(b) — Trade and other
receivables to the consolidated financial statements.

We focused on this area because the allowance for
impairment of trade receivables is mainly related to
specific customers (HK$6.8 milion as at 31 December
2016) and has increased by approximately HK$3.1 million
or 83% comparing with that of last year.

In addition, the assessment for impairment of trade
receivables involves critical accounting estimates and
judgments relating to the extent and duration that amount
will be recovered.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RFFNBEFNAEEBERETSE

In responding to this key audit matter, we performed the
following procedures:

()  We understood, evaluated and tested credit control
procedures of the trade receivables including the
monthly management review of ageing, repayment
and impairment assessment of trade receivables;

(i)  For those items with impairment provision being
made, we reviewed the impairment calculations,
focusing on the estimated amount to be recovered
and timing of the recovery with reference to the
supporting documents, e.g. repayment schedules of
trade receivables;

(i)  We requested confirmations for major year end
balances. Where confirmations had not been
received or received with difference, we sought
explanation from management and checked to their
original sales contracts, delivery documents and their
subsequent settlement after year end date.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence
obtained, we found accounting estimates and judgments
in relation to the provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2016 was supported by
the evidence we obtained.
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IndependentAudﬂoWsF?epoﬂ(conﬁnued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZER WA (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
&3 % A S ()

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Michael W.H. Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 March 2017
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EHEEKRER

Year ended 31 December
BHZ12A31ALEE

2016
Note HK$’000
Bt FTER
Revenue 5 A 5 1,626,611
Cost of sales FizR= DN 7 (1,170,133)
Gross profit E ] 456,478
Other income E At e A 6 22,734
Other gains/(losses) — net Hip ik (E518) — /F58 6 15,372
Selling expenses HER X 7 (86,626)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (181,244)
Operating profit mE R 226,714
Interest income FEHA 9 5,533
Interest expenses B 9 (3,230)
Finance income — net BEEUWA — F58 2,303
Profit before income tax &R AT 18 B A1 5 A 229,017
Income tax expense FriS Fi 5 & 10 (23,319)
Profit for the year attributable to RATHEE AEA
owners of the Company FREF 205,698
Other comprehensive income Hi2mKE
Item that may be reclassified to BRAREEF SR B
profit and loss: ZHEE -
Currency translation differences b 5 =58 (35,263)
Total comprehensive income for FRE2ENZHEE
the year 170,435
Earnings per share for the year FRAEBREF
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) —EARNEE(BRBT) 11

The notes on pages 123 to 195 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

F1BE1BENHERZEAHUBHRE

EAR R EE S

2015
HK$'000
THET

1,606,205
(1,187,331)

418,874
22,237
1,512
(82,676)
(147,130

209,793
9,721
(4,901)

4,820
214,613

(27,525)

187,088

(42,184)

144,904

0.23
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Note
Bt i

ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE KRR 13
Intangible assets EREE 14
Prepayments for property, plant and W - BE R EHTEN K

equipment
Current assets mENEE
Inventories ey 16
Trade and other receivables Z 5 K H b fE R FRE 17
Deposits for bank borrowings RITBEMES 24
Restricted cash PR IR & 19
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEEY 19
Total assets HmEE
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of ARBHEBEAEGES

the Company
Share capital A% 7R 20
Share premium I 17 % B 20
Other reserves Hth 23
Retained earnings IRE & 7 22
Total equity BB

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

As at 31 December

A12H31 8
2016
HK$’000
FExT

362,400
11,035

12,154

385,589

264,388
253,564
90,766
26,476
381,310

1,016,504

1,402,093

82,660
237,902

(5,767)
370,215

685,010

2015
HK$'000
TAET

344,151
10,785

20,970

375,906

254,402
244,546
104,238

1,176
319,951

924,313

1,300,219

82,660
237,902
15,890
269,049

605,501



As at 31 December

MW12H31AH
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
i0kz3 FTET FA&TT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings BITEE 24 68,051
Deferred income on government grants B #76 Bh 3R FE UL A 25 —
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHARE 27 6,766
74,817
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H thFE S 58 26 494,021 471,980
Income tax liabilities EHasE 9,068 10,633
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 164,984 137,288
668,073 619,901
Total liabilities BEE 717,083 694,718
Total equity and liabilities EnREBEAE 1,402,093 1,300,219

The notes on pages 123 to 195 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2017 and were signed
on its behalf.

Li Pui Leung
FHR
Director

EF

FIBR1BANMERZFAHMBRE
EVARRC RS o

R2017F3AIBEKES S A& THER
REE -

Yung Kin Cheung Michael
SEA

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

B EEEER

Balance at 1 January 2015

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Currency translation

differences

Total comprehensive income

Contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company
Dividends

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Total transactions with owners
of the Company

Balance at 31 December 2015

Share
capital

[N
HK$'000
FTET

M201551 H1B#)
R 82,660
2EWE
F A% A -
X E

2HKHEBE =

FREEFEAHER
FE 1 9 R

S -

FRAFAFAEEA
HERESGDE
nE -

HEEATRE =

BARNREEAH
RHHER =

M2015512A31 B K

22 82,660
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Share
premium

R E
HK$'000
FTET

237,902

237,902

Other reserves
Hit R E
Share  Currency
Statutory  option translation
reserves reserve reserve
BRE
EERE RE ELRE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THT FExT FET
21,777 3,334 20,989
— — (42,184)
— — (42,184)
11,974 — —
11,974 — —
33,751 3,334 (21,195)

Retained
earnings

RE R
HK$'000
TET

160,063

187,088

187,088

(66,128)

(66,128)

(11,974)

(78,102)

269,049

Total

it
HK$'000
FiE

526,725
187,088

(42,184)

144,904

(66,128)

(66,128)

(66,128)

605,501



Balance at 1 January 2016

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Currency translation

differences

Total comprehensive income

Contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company
Dividends

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

Note
g

1201651 A1 8
P
2k
F 35 F
EHZ%8
23

2HKHEBE

FRAEREEAHER
P15 2 Tk

BB 28

FREATHEEA
HERESDE
BnE

HEEATRE 22

Total transactions with owners B2 F#EH A K

of the Company

R HEE

Balance at 31 December 2016 74201612831 B #

£

Share
capital

[N
HK$'000
FET

82,660

82,660

Share
premium

R0 E
HK$'000
FTEL

237,902

237,902

The notes on pages 123 to 195 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

/_\ N/ —_= \ / “z\ﬁl"
SHERE

Other reserves

Hit B
Share  Currency
Statutory  option translation
reserves reserve reserve

BRE
EERE RE ELRE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THT FET FET
33,751 3,334 (21,195)
— — (35,263)
= = (35,263)
= = (35,263)
13,606 — —
13,606 = (35,263)
47,357 3,334 (66,458)

RIKEER)ERAF

=

Retained
earnings

RE R
HK$'000
TET

269,049

205,698

205,698

(90,926)

114,772

(13,606)

101,166

370,215

g (E

Total

it
HK$'000
FiE

605,501
205,698

(35,263)

170,435

(90,926)

79,509

79,509

685,010

F1E1BENMERZRFAFMBRE
HY AR R D o

ZO—REER
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2016
Note HK$°000
k=3 FET
Cash flows from operating activities REREETHNRESRE
Cash generated from operations REELENRSE 29(a) 266,356
Interest received B F B 3,242
Income tax paid BTFEE (24,638)
Net cash generated from operating activities 48 & 5% BB &= 4 1938 &
FER 244,960
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNELSRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E W HKE L&
and construction in progress AREETRE (98,875)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERFAE (4,020)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME BMERREN
plant and equipment Fr 1S k38 29(b) 4,670
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets B Rt HEM SR & & (221,318)
Proceeds from available-for-sale financial HEENSREEMNS
assets RIA 223,792
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMAE S FE (95,751)
Cash flows from financing activities KERMEZHINRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMISFKIA 326,790
Repayments of bank borrowings BRETEE (332,835)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits for RITEERE D
bank borrowings (3Z ) 13,472
Interest paid EEREESS (3,221)
Dividends paid BT E 28 (90,926)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEBMARESFEE (86,720)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR& R IR & ZE Y N
& 62,489
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof  F R4 RIREZEY
the year 319,951
Currency translation losses on cash and IRE RIS EBYWIENR
cash equivalents 518 (1,130)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRRASKESEEY
the year 381,310
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReMASEEBYES
equivalents: DA
Cash and cash on hand ReERFHEEAS 407,786
Restricted cash Z R 51382 (26,476)

381,310

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

The notes on pages 123 to 195 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

2015
HK$’000
TAET

319,398
6,058
(44,166)

281,290

(122,590)
(4,291)

1,079
(307,671)

311,683
(121,790)
308,088
(233,417)
(102,232)

(4,933)
(66,128)

(98,622)

60,878
265,612

(6,539)

319,951

321,127
(1,176)

319,951

FIBE1BANMERZETAHBBEE
B AR AR Y



Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company, an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing, sales, subcontracting, fabrication and modification
of molds and plastic components in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). As at 31 December 2016, the ultimate shareholders of
the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael and
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate Shareholders”), each
holding an effective equity interest of 33.40%, 20.78% and 20.04%
in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 13 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets which are carried at fair
value.

B 5 R M R

—REH

KRARIR2013F3A2HRAEHS
MK AEREER AT - ARQF
i i 9% = & &9 b 4E /5 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 4%
NElRLEERR G - EZRAMB A
A(BmBRINER]  FEEPEA
REHEMBE(HEDHEEARTEA
RS- HE RI - 2ERSK-
2016512 A31 B - KN&E B /) & &K
RAEZTHREE FSEAXERER
BEE(GBRIZKRE] BEFX
B R AR A D R #E A 33.40% - 20.78%
F20.04% B0 B AR AR 2 ©

MR2013F12 A208 » KR AW KM E
BEEBERGBERRAR (R
£

BREBEMMEN ZEEHTBRRE
TIABIT(TABTD) 2N - 25466
BHRERECARNAREEGN2017F3A
13 B = LA T3 -
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HEREBEBEESRAE(KEMR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2016:

° Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations — Amendments to HKFRS
11

° Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation —
Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) 16 and HKAS 38

° Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 cycle, and

o Disclosure initiative — amendments to
HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the current period or any prior
period and is not likely to affect future periods.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2016. They are relevant to
the operations of the Group but have not been
early adopted.

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

2 FESTHHEME@

21 WEEE @)
2AIBTHEREESE (@)

(b) AR BRAN B FT AT B
R ] 2
AT ET 2R - 2R
#1& 7] & 72 B 702016
F1A1HRABZT K
FEEHEMEMFKRE
Bo sz E T £
HAMET RRER
KEBEMNEERRE -
B RERPRA -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHEZ#%
BN EtHBER

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

BAVBIRELEREIR R T A

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

BB HRELEDE155% EP&HKA

HKFRS 16 Leases

BB HRELEDNE 165K HE

1 January 2018
2018F1 A1 H
1 January 2018

20181 A1 H
1 January 2019
201941 A1H

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new or revised
standards which are relevant to the Group’s
operation. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the directors of the
Company, no significant impact on the financial
performance and positions of the Group is
expected when adopting Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) 9 and HKFRS 15.
The directors also do not expect the adoption of
HKFRS 16 would result in significant impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions
except for the recognition of the right-of use
assets and corresponding lease liabilities arising
from accounting for operating leases by the
Group as a lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLlClES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Note 2.6(c)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% i 2% B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLlClES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Merger accounting

In preparing for the Company’s listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in December 2013,
the Group underwent a reorganisation involving
entities under the same ownership of the ultimate
shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing
carrying amounts from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill
or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) :

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 0 FEEHBEBE .
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) BEw

2.2 B2 7 |
2215 BtER B (@)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Merger accounting (Continued)
The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under
the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control

(b) EHE(E)
EfrEKRKRBE
EattERIEKE
xR 2/ HEBEBESE
HEBIEBERX

H[E 2 %‘Jiﬁ}%?ﬁ(uf
4%ﬁ1/‘§)2¥ﬁ
o LR 2= ﬁ%llé-\.GqTEI

combination. Hf o
The comparative amounts in the consolidated AHBERROLEE
financial statements are presented as if the CRERBINE B E

entities or businesses had been combined at the
previous balance sheet date or when they first
came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by

BEREMEERE
REMIERZHF
EHI R (AREE
RE)EHRET

those entities. All intra-group transactions, estlE - ﬁﬁ ﬁ £ 5 I
balances and unrealised gains on transactions SN RO

between combining entities or businesses are BREHER: jZ % ﬂ‘%
eliminated on consolidation. ZERZHRERIK

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (Continued)

2 FESTHHREME @

2.3 Segment reporting 23 DEBHE

130

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who makes strategic decisions.

AR T A B R X
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2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 HNEEFE
(@) Functional and presentation currency (@ UMeERZ75 iéi?'-jn
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the AEBXEBMBHmEARN
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the FIRIEE - iﬁ 1« ZERBKE
primary economic environment in which the entity FMEFELBEREMER

operates (the “functional currency”). Renminbi (“RMB”)
is the functional currency of principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the presentation and functional currency of the

ME®(Thee a8 -
ARBETARED DAE
EWTELEMB LA
IJJA“‘"% 2 E%%’:Mﬁﬂﬂ%%&

Company. UNEIESERI 3") QEE
(b) Transactions and balances b) RZKEER
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INEZXHGHEARSE B

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions

REBEEEFFEHHEER
BOIRTEXRBRE 5§
B -ALliRFEERIE
FREXR LB EFE

and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of WENKEERBEMEE
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign WERRE AREHEE

currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “Other gains/(losses)—
net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within “finance income — net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income .

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised as a separate component of equity in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHBEHME @

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ¥ BMERRXE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not provided
on construction in progress until the related asset is
completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
BF 20%F
Leasehold improvements

ENE BELRBHRESE
P 7 % T B8 KRB 1B 18 51 B o FEE
ERABHENBEZEFREERE
HzRX -

ERIRERETRIMNRTK
M BB R RE BT
R-RABREMELENBE R
ERx NEREBBRRBEH
MEMBERKA - R TR
RITE BEEMBEEERMRENR
BT LE

REEHEER G RREERN
SmAE AR ANEEFRIEB KA
RS ER HERKRAT €5
ABEREEXERRS —HEBYL
EEWMBEE) EERMOZK
EERBUEHER - A H M
Ko 4 o8 B 0 BE A PR 2 B BREA P
AR BERAME -

ME BEIRREFERELMA
AEAFHNERESERESD
EHREFEWT:

Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter

HEMEEE HBsFRRAMBANAKFRAMEPREE)
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

B 5 Bt 2s 5E10%F

Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 3 years

FE -EHEERERRE 3F

Motor vehicles 5 years

_E 5%

7 2 10 ) 64 0B L 08 P OF B 5
CEICESE L RE DS LT 2ot
R

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHHEME@

25 ¥ WMERKE@

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gains/(losses)—net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FEEREESNEMGFTED
TR - H AR (E B O = AT IR
Bl & %8 -

& & BB B L BTSSR R R
HEEE YRAFEEKER
M E W s (BR)— F8EIR
FER -

2.6 Intangible assets 26 BMILEE

(@) Computer software (@) FTE#E:MH
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis BAETGETELZE AR
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the R TEREERERE
specific software. These costs are amortised on a EFHRAEEMBERE
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 Ko ZEKRKTIRELER
to 10 years. HMuGAERFEFHGFER

104F) & 8H -

(b) Contractual customer relationships b)) E&XEFEBE®
Contractual customer relationships acquired in a EEBEHTERNE YD
business combination are recognised at fair value at the BREFBEAIZWEEBEHN R
acquisition date. The contractual customer relations REER BB FHEAEA
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less ERTERFE  DIEKA
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated MR EEYER WIRAR
using the straight-line method at 3 years over the BERBHNEFPBENMG
expected life of the customer relationship. TR = F Y -

() Goodwill c BE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

() Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

2.7 Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

° there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

° it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, these are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
deposits for bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables, restricted cash and cash and bank
balances in the balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of interest income.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHBEHME @

21N ERMEERE

211 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ’loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or Group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) :
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRBME @
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) ®

212 Inventories 212 7 &

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. It excluded borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
See Note 2.9.2 for further information about the group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.11 for a
description of the group’s impairment policies.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (Continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) :
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRBME @
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) ®

218 fE B B A

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the ENEART ST MR AR
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted ANENBARKSE RE
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the ERERB KA E’U BXRNE

Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRBME @
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) ®

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.19 BN HR R R 3E Fr 18 B (@)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share
premium).

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETHEREHMEw =
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) @

2.22 I A T8 52 (|

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Modification services income
Revenue from mold modification services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

(c) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.23 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.25 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group and approved by the Board of
Directors.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK
dollar (“HK$”), US dollar (‘USD”) and Euro dollar (‘EUR”).
Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have
always been the concern of the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group’s
chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation, the
Group’s chief financial officer would gather and analyse
information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief
financial officer would then obtain quotations from
various banks as to the financial instrument and present
such quotations to the Group’s chief executive officer,
who would then evaluate and make a decision as to
whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement.
No hedging contract has been entered into during the
year. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows:

3 HHEEREREGW@w

31 B¥EEREZE@
@ HNERRE)

REEEREBERAY AL
BUINEFEEEEER
ERaBEzZREERI D

T

2016
HK$’000
TER

15,570
489,853
41,338

546,761

129,357
38,321
80,643

Assets BE
HK$ BT
USD Ei
EUR B 7T
Total 4t
Liabilities =R
HK$ BT
Usb xETT
EUR EX 7T
Total st

248,321

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH

2015
HK$'000
TAET

12,615
202,835
43,466

258,916

120,864
31,431
100,207

252,602

G

147



{ 148

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable held
constant, the profit before income tax would have been
higher/(lower) as follows:

2016

3

B R T B
3.1 K EKREZE @

@

SN [ Bex ()

i AR X BN
1E,f2 5% ' i FT A H b
BERFETE BB
Bl g A8 0, O 4) 15 5 1A
N

2015

higher/(lower) on profit

before income tax

if exchanges rates change by

HERSENT  BRASHA

higher/(lower) on profit
before income tax

if exchanges rates change by

e E R B E T - bR PTAS B AT

BRSO i K1 a0, G )
+5% -5% +5% -5%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHBT T FET FHET
HK$ BT 5,412 (5,412)
usD ETT (8,570) 8,570
EUR i 2,837 (2,837)
Price risk (b) EE Pk
The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk NS E I TN N
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered BEERIEmERR
into any long term contracts with the suppliers. SN S E ) N o b =R g
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually FIIEWERHED - RV
passed on to customers. BEERNEDBTFEEZETE
=
Credit risk c FEERE

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for bank
borrowings, the Group manages the credit risk by
placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and other
receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition and does
not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. Based on the expected
recoverability and timing for collection of the
outstanding balances, the Group maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and actual losses
incurred have been within management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group faced some
concentration of credit risk as the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 59% (2015:
53%) of the total trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management
by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated through the
availability of financing through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its
financial commitments. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows including
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or
if floating based on rates at the year-end date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

On
demand

BEX
HK$'000
T#x

At 31 December 2016 42016412831 H

Bank borrowings RITEE

Trade and other B REHMEN
payables (excluding REGEE@EAE
non-financial liabilities) & %)

3 HHEEREREGW@w

3.1

3 months
or less
=EAR
DU
HK$’000
THERT

149,436

226,639

Total

At
HK$’000

B 7% B B & |
o) REBESEEE
3 months Over
to 1 year 1 year
=@BRZE
—-F —fFHt
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER

TER

203,853

242,252

Total Bt 376,075 446,105
On  3months 3 months Over
demand or less to 1 year 1 year Total
=f@Azxx =EA=E
REX VN —F —FRE Bat
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET THET FAT FAT
At 31 December 2015 42015%F12 A 31 B
Bank borrowings RITEE = 107,590 32,676 73,464 213,730
Trade and other 25 REMEN
payables (excluding FIEGEE AR
non-financial liabilities) K& 4) 13,676 237,614 — — 251,290
Total 4Bt 13,676 345,204 32,676 73,464 465,020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

C)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. If
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 1%
higher/lower for the year ended 31 December 2016
with all other variables held at constant, the Group’s
profit before tax would have been lower/higher by
HK$1,993,000 (2015: HK$2,053,000).

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may vary the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

3.3

3 BKREREREG@
3.2 EXRERE @)

The gearing ratio is as follows: EEAGBHERNMT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total borrowings EEBE 199,294 205,339
Total equity T B 685,010 605,501
Gearing ratio (%) BEBBLE%) 29% 34%

Gearing ratio has decreased to 29% as at 31 December
2016, which is due to increase in equity and decrease in total
borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank
borrowings and trade and other receivables, as well as
current financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and current bank borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities as at 31 December
2016.

There were no financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value by the use of valuation techniques at 31 December
2016 (2015: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables with
reference to the extent and duration that the amount
will be recovered. Allowance is applied where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(©

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis of
inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) :
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BRI HE @
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued) ®

4.2 FERET BRI EEH &

4.2 Critical judgments in applying accounting

policies

With effect from 1 January 2008, companies within the PRC
are required to withhold income tax at 10% of the amount of
dividend declared to their immediate holding companies
outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare
dividend out of profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5%
withholding income tax rate is applied when the immediate
holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are established in
Hong Kong and fulfil certain requirements under the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong. During the
year, the directors reassessed the cash requirement of the
Group and the dividend policy of its major subsidiaries
established in the PRC, namely TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited,
YD Mold (Shenzhen) limited, TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited, based on
the Group’s current business plan and financial position. The
profit generated by these subsidiaries for the period from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016 amounting to HKS$
146,546,000 would not be distributed and no deferred tax
liability was accrued accordingly. The Group plans to reinvest
these profits in the business operation. This involves critical
judgments by the directors.

B2008F 1818 # & F 5
SNEEERAGNFRWE QT
R2008F1A1H % ot FTBEEL A
mARERRKE AR BERAR
AIZBHAZSEEERARSEIR
B A% B & BRI 10% M T8 0 BT 15
e BHREMNBRAAMEREIER
DRARBBNLEFEPEHES
BRI BBEEN LN E T
BE - Bl R5% /) 8K B & S
FEHMAER - FKHN EFRER
SERBEBTERI B -
HASEEMRESBTRKARER
PR FEENB QR (BNE
TEAECRY)BRAF - HRE
BRI BRARF - RILFENE
BORIBRABREIERBE
(B M) AR AR BB R
FTUEFHTG ZEMBRAR
20161 A1 H £2016412 A 31
A B f8 BT 28 A5 89 ) 71146,546,000
BILBETEETDIK  HETRT
SEATWELHERBE K&
Errgl S afBREEHE
BEE - NEESEETNERH
%ﬁo

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

155



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Group. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports that are used to make strategic
decisions. During the year, the Group has 17 operating segments,
out of which 9 operating segments relating to the mold business
are aggregated into 'mold fabrication’ operating segment as they
have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and
meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8; the remaining 8
operating segments relating to the plastic business are aggregated
into "plastic components manufacturing’ operating segment as they
have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and
meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the
executive directors considered the nature of the Group’s business
and determined that the Group has two reportable segments as
follows: (i) mold fabrication and (i) plastic components
manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on their revenue and gross profit and do not
assess the assets and liabilities of the operating segments.

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

(@ The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

Revenue from external customers

PRC =8}

South East Asia and Hong Kong R MBS
Europe M

USA ES

Mexico [iths)

Others HAb

The revenue information above is based on delivery location
of the customers.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

7 =& #

TERERARECHRERLTEERN
TEF-UTESEHNAKENAL
BEAFHERARDEER A RE
FATA 1 B S DR SR B 7 B R 5 B E AR
B0 NFERN AREHEA7E
REpEe B o BEAXBKER
MRS DR A R EA UK ER R
mEMAEEEMBRE LR ESHEAA
HemAmEGREMRE G RIER
SUEIREDEE: Mmer ToEE 8%
BAEBENKEED MAREFBHEUNE
ERE - mEMBERAMBHREER
55 8% BT 3 &Y IN 48 % BE 15 1 T 1% & BF
ROTREGREIRED - Btk
HITEFEREASEXBOMEELE
EARBENMERHREDEBMOT : ()
BEEER()EBAMEIE -

1T AR 5 2 A A R E T
HEESBORE  BRYGED
BE R R TR -

EfZEBRERNS HER

@ TREIAEBERFARMLERS
ME DB ANER -

IREBEFPBA

2015
HK$’000
TAET

700,952
342,192
318,912
170,735
13,224
60,190

1,606,205

FRBAERTDEREP R
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Continued)

(@  (Continued)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

7o &8 & B )

EEZEHRERN > BER
(%)
@ (&)

RBEE(EM T AMELRR

BHEERI)  RER :

PRC w
Germany ==

(b)  The segment information for the reportable segments is set

out as below:
Mold fabrication
BARE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHET
Revenue WA
Segment revenue 2 EIRA 696,337 635,810
Inter-segment revenue 2 2R A K 8
elimination (64,941) (47,010
Revenue from external IREFP WA
customers 631,396 588,800
Segment results DEELE 179,342 149,789
Other income and other gains Hip A RH A
— net Yoz — ¥R
Selling expenses HERX
Administrative expenses THEFAX
Finance income — net MERA —F8E

Profit before income tax BRATEBADRA -

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
378,826 368,790
6,763 7,116
385,589 375,906
() FTHME D WD HE KB 0
R
Plastic components
manufacturing Total
EBAMRE Mgt
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT FHET FTExT FHET

995,215

995,215

277,136

1,017,405

1,017,405

269,085

1,691,552 1,663,215

(64,941) (47,010)

1,626,611 1,606,205

456,478 418,874

38,106 20,725
(86,626) (82,676)
(181,244) (147,130)
2,303 4,820

229,017 214,613

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Continued)

(c)  Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature:

7EHER @

EHE2EURERNDBER

()

© ABAEERETEH R
o

Sales of goods
Modification service income

& B m
SRR B U o

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THET
1,566,618 1,549,746
59,993 56,459
1,626,611 1,606,205

(d) Revenues of approximately HK$212,737,000 (2015:
HK$147,232,000) were derived from a single external
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic
components manufacturing segment.

@ Y A #212,737,0007% 7T (2015
1 147,232,000 7T) Jh R g B
— AR - ZEWRARE TS
AHFREDE -

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ Hi g AR H gz~
(LOSSES) — NET (E5E)— #8
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Other income Hibug A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials 54 E R R FIgR M R 13,683
Government subsidies IR 7S #75 B 5,401
Others HApb 3,153
22,237
Other gains/(losses) — net Hihz (FE)— F8
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) P& N ek (B 18) 5 (1,218)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant LEME - WE &R E UK
and equipment (Note 29(b)) =,/ (FE518) (B 7£29(0b)) (294)
(1,512)
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

A %5 R B A (A8

7 BRUMEEIHAEX

2016
HK$’000
FET

Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Subcontracting expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Transportation and travelling expenses
Operating lease payments
Water and electricity expenditures
Commission expenses
Other taxes and levies
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for
receivables
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
impairment of inventories
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non audit services
Advisory and legal service expenses
Maintenance expenses
Utilities and postage fees
Advertising and promotion fees
Recruitment expenses
Custom declaration charges
Donations
Security and estate management expenses
Bank charges and handling fees
Other expenses

RRRAREARTRED

BB RN
RERFHZ (M ZE8)
KRIEZERA

& i 8
BRHERERMAX
RETHENR

KEEHR

k- 3=

H &

FE W R IB B, (BB =)

FEREBEHERR), EE

1% 2R Hr B

— ZBUR

— IR BUR 5
A ROR R IRTE 7 XX
wiEEH
MELRBE
EERERER
BEER
HEE
B
REZEMFEERE
RITHERTFES
H Al F

(11,546)

573,722
452,358
143,016
75,395
48,043
43,794
35,001
18,347
17,702

3,072

(7,192)

3,787
528
9,637
10,683
3,922
3,302
2,307
2,176
2,165
1,518
1,112
5,254

Total cost of sales, selling expenses
and administrative expenses

HEMAE HEMIRITR
P

1,438,003

2015
HK$'000
TAET

(21,721)
571,677
433,762
172,452

64,360

45,754

36,206

41,069

20,759

10,704

(1,770)

1,880

3,835
555
5,614
10,783
4,462
4,075
1,361
2,503
2,060
1,308
1,239
4,210

1,417,137

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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7 EXPENSE BY NATURE (continued)

Research and development expenses represented:

7 BEHEEESHEX@

Raw materials and consumables used BB R FEM
Employee benefit expenses EERAAX

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages and bonuses T & RIEAL
Pension costs — defined RNKA — E58
contribution plans (a) HRETEl ()
Other social security costs H b 4 R AK AN
Other allowances and benefits H i) B K A& T

MEEANLK:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
9,335
29,828
39,163

8 EERAMX
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
406,058 390,578
14,250 13,642
17,501 16,482
14,549 13,060
452,358 433,762

(a) Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contributes funds
which are calculated as 10%-20% (2015: 10%-20%) of the
average employee salary for the year as agreed by local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

(@) ~&£EHEHBARTNEEAR
B A MBRAEEREENTE
BEHFERTE - AEENFH
M BB A R IR 5 ™ BT E A
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MZrEER UREERKE
FliEftES -



8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 include four
(2015: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 34. The emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2015: one) individual during year are as

EBEERABE @

b) EEHZESHMAL

H E2016F12A31H IF FE K
EEREEEMEALEENE
(2015F : UB)ESE - EMeE
EAKIFESAFA PN RE DT - REF
RNEH—R(Q015F: —R)&E

follows: FMATHESHT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Wages, salaries, allowance and TE #F&e 2K
other benefits H {48 FI 1,116
Bonus 4T 1,642
Contributions to pension plans BIRE A 18
2,776

The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the following
bands:

AEBREEFMALIATOBE N F
T5IAR

2016 2015

Emolument bands < 48 B

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7t & 3,000,0007% 7T
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7t & 3,500,0007% 7T

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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9 FINANCE INCOME — NET 9 RIEWA-—FHE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FH&TT
Interest income: FBEUA -
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITFZHF E WA 3,059 5,709
— Interest income on available-for-sale —AHHENEREERN
financial assets PSRN 2,474 4,012
5,533 9,721
Interest expense: FERX
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (3,230) (4,901)

Finance income — net

BMEWRA—HER

2,303 4,820

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10 FRBH X

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Current income tax
— PRC corporate income tax
— PRC corporate income tax over-
provided in previous years
Deferred income tax (Note 27)

B 5 PR 15 75
—FEGRMAEHR
—BEFEBEE RN

FEREEMAEH

EERTS B iE27)

31,128

(7,286)
3,683

27,525

(@) Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within
the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering the
available tax benefits. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2015:
25%). TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited,
subsidiaries of the Group, were recognised as “New and High
Technology Enterprise” and thus enjoy a preferential CIT rate
of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016, 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018 respectively.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, a
withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the immediate
holding companies outside the PRC when their PRC
subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits earned after 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) income
tax

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI during
the year (2015: nil).

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

10 FISHBE @

(b)

(c)

(d)

FEEERSHR(hERR
Bl

TEMSHIIEASBERNRFE
MR EREE AR BRI
AEHEE Rt R ESHRK
HEBERBETEAMBEEER
HoEAREMSBEE R25%
(20154 : 25%) ° N & @ 2 [ B
AAIRIEACRYIDBR AR -
FITRANFZORINDBR AR K
RIBBER(EHMN) BR AT
WRERISTEMEE] 8D
B 8201451518 £20164F 12
A31H H /- 201561818 &
201712 A 31 H B fE & 2016 F 1
B1B £2018F 12 A1 HEHM =
BE15%RTEMSHERRE -

PEENRER

BIE D ERFHIE - B200841
A1B®E EREBRIINEEEZER
A A A KB A J] 72008 4F 1
A1B#& % 8 3t A B ELA )& F R
ERRE AIEZEEHZEERA
AIBUR10% MBI AT B - HH
BB ARMNEREERATRE
BRI FEPEEEBME L
MMIFIROZEHERNE THE A
H5% R IET RB MBS
i o

REERLBESRENR

MR ASEERFREREEZE
EVWEBRAEFREA I E
REBELBEENEREE
(20154 : 4&) -

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

(e) Taxation on the Group’s profit

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due

to the following:

10 FRE BB X @

() A& BT F Bt

7K 5 B BR P 15 35 At ) AT S04 B9
BIE TSR T 5 & B 8RR A E
EAREEHENNEBEXER KRG

Profit before income tax

BR P 15 %54 Al ) 7

Tax calculated at corporate income
tax rate of 25%
Effects of:
— Different tax rates applied
— Income not subject to tax
— Accelerated deduction of
research and development
expenses
— Tax losses not recognised
— Expenses not deductible for tax
— Qver provision in prior years
— Withholding income tax

1ob% M E B XS

i &
TIHEHENTE

— AR =X

— BERB KA

— WP E B B nEt Hk

— RERHAEE
— NRI IR X

- BEFEBRRER
— BHH

EMELENERSERLEE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
229,017 214,613
57,254 53,653
(16,665) (11,739)
(15,641) (10,294)
(3,261) (2,585)
1,644 1,817
913 682
(925) (7,286)
= 3,277
27,525

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$’'000) (FA&m)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares issued (thousands)

(F B0

Basic earnings per share (HK$) R EARZF B T)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. The number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options less
the number of shares that could have been issued at fair
value (determined as the average market share price of the
Company’s shares) for the same amount of proceed are
share issues for no consideration which causes dilution to
earnings per share. During the year, the outstanding share
options do not have any material dilutive impact. Therefore,
the diluted earnings per share of the Company approximates
the basic earnings per share.

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

11 8RER

(@)

RRBEA A B G A

BERTE AR INEFHH

(b)

RIKEER)ERAF

B

FREREM T AR F Z 4 B
AARFEEDBTE BB IMEF
BHE -

2015

187,088

826,600

0.23

BE
BREERNDARRERAE
BEEEEBRE  REBEHER
17 FE M & 38 B0 4 15 AR B AT
B-ARRAE—HEEEETELS
B RERRE - BMRITERRER
BERTZROEAE - RS ENE
RBELMEREMZIAE
(BERARAKRMD ZWHFH
BE)ETZRNHDBE FRE
BET BN BEZETENE
HERBNELHET - £
ARITEZERETETAERHE
BRE At ARAEREE
BNESRERRNEE -

ZO—R"EFH



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 KB 2 =

TXANR2016F12 A3 B T EH B
RAEI(BHABBERAR)IE:

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2016, all of which are limited liability companies:

Place of Principal activities Particulars of

Company name incorporation and place of operation issued share capital Interest held

ARER o {0 BX 7 3t B FTEEBREEHE ERITRAFE kR
TK Group International BVI Investment holding/PRC 50,000 ordinary shares of *100%
(Hong Kong) Limited 1 USD each
RIEEBER(FE) HKEBRZHS BEER R E 50,000 & & A% [l (& *100%
BRAE 12T TR
TK International (BVI) Limited BVI Trading of plastic product 100 ordinary shares of 100%
and molds/PRC 1 USD each
KBETHES BRAURREAE S 100 A% & A% T & 100%
G 1€ T H) EE AR
TK Plastic Products PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of 100%
(Suzhou) Limited products/PRC HK$10,000,000
ROTZBR & (BRM) H s HhE BEHER 100%
ARAE 10,000,000 7T
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of 100%
HK$132,000,000
FOTRA ORI H & B BIE, B BEHME R 100%
BRD A 132,000,000% 7T
YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of 100%
HIK$10,000,000
HRER ORI BRA A A REBIE " EH EHANR 100%
10,000,000 7 7T
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of 100%
Limited products/PRC HK$166,000,000
RILABRIEZ ORI A BB HEH BEHAER 100%
BRA A 166,000,000 % 7T
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of 100%
Germany EUR25,600
EE B A 1EE & & 725,600 81 7T 100%

* ARREEERFERK K EERTK Industrial
Holdings Limited °

*  Shares held directly by the Company and formerly known as TK Industrial
Holdings Limited.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BER%ZE

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEWE KA #HBR
£ BERES BERZE "E EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Year ended B ZE2015%
31 December 2015 12A31BILFE
Opening net book amount FEVREFE 25,855 226,415 5,082 2,315 45,928 306,495
Currency translation BE X =R
differences (1,438) (14,039) (296) (105) (3,302 (19,180)
Additions NE - - 4,646 3,432 111,933 120,011
Transfer 303 18,476 97,586 — - (116,062) —
Disposals BE (33) (1,334) (6) — - (1,373)
Depreciation e (9,275) (48,608) (3,326) (593) = (61,802)
Closing net book amount FRE@MFE 33,585 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
At 31 December 2015 R20154 12 A31H
Cost % 54,784 537,901 24,241 6,548 38,497 661,971
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (21,199 (277,881) (17,241) (1,499 - (317,820)
Net book amount BRERE 33,685 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
Year ended EE2016%
31 December 2016 12A31BLLEE
Opening net book amount FHE@DFE 33,585 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
Currency translation N =
differences (910) (10,504) (168) (47) (1,924) (13,553)
Additions NE = — 4,258 = 103,433 107,691
Transfer i 49,212 71,709 — — (120,921) —
Disposals (Note 29(b)) B E (HfaF290b)) ) (3,883) ) - - (3,898)
Depreciation e (15,912) (51,356) (3,582) (1,141) - (71,991)
Closing net book amount FRE@MFE 65,968 265,986 7,500 3,861 19,085 362,400
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H
Cost B AR 108,832 549,302 34,158 6,171 19,085 717,548
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (42,864) (283,316) (26,658) (2,310) — (355,148)
Net book amount REEE 65,968 265,986 7,500 3,861 19,085 362,400
RIEEERERAT —O—~EEH | 167 |
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in
the profit or loss:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R 3% I R (A8

13 % BERKRE®

FEHFARSZRNOTIER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of sales $H & A AR 52,990
Administrative expenses TR X 8,567
Selling expenses HEMX 245
61,802
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BILEE
Contractual
Computer customer
Software relationships Goodwill Total
=¥
EE G EEBE e et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET FHET
At 1 January 2015 M"2015F1H81H
Cost BN 18,767 973 892 20,632
Accumulated amortisation 2 5 £ (10,796) (116) — (10,912)
Net book amount EREFEE 7,971 857 892 9,720
Year ended HZ2015%12831H
31 December 2015 IEFEE
Opening net book amount 4 4] Bk [ )5 (& 7,971 857 892 9,720
Currency translation fE R =%
differences (469) (101) (98) (668)
Additions NE 4,291 — — 4,291
Amortisation charge 5 (2,279) (279) — (2,558)
Closing net book amount F R RHE EE 9,514 477 794 10,785
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H
Cost BN 16,743 858 794 18,395
Accumulated amortisation 2 5t ## £ (7,229) (381) — (7,610)
Net book amount REFE 9,514 477 794 10,785

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 B EE @)
Contractual
Computer customer
Software relationships Goodwill Total
=
B EFBR& GRS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FHET
Year ended 31 BZ2016%F12H31H
December 2016 IEFE
Opening net book amount 4 4] BR [ )H (& 9,514 477 794 10,785
Currency translation X ZE5
differences (829) (12) (25) (366)
Additions NE 4,020 — — 4,020
Amortisation charge BT (3,124) (280) = (3,404)
Closing net book amount F X RHE EE 10,081 185 769 11,085
At 31 December 2016 M20165F12H831H
Cost [N 19,923 832 769 21,524
Accumulated amortisation 2 5 ## £ (9,842) (647) — (10,489)
Net book amount EEHEEE 10,081 185 769 11,035
Amortisation charges were included in the following categories in B HET A BBREMTHER
profit or loss:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Administrative expenses TEHAX 2,279
Selling expenses HER X 279
2,558

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 B EE @

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in TK
Mold Germany GmbH in 2014.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold Germany
GmbH is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts prepared by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

Net book value (HK$’000) EEFE(TET
Net profit margin (%) 5 ) & (%)
Revenue growth rate (%) W A1 K 2R (%)
Discount rate (%) 8538 & (%)

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment charge
was required after performing the impairment assessment for the
year (2015: nil).

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2016, the Group
would still have recognised no impairment loss on the goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2016, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

i 2 F 2014 F U7 B TK Mold Germany
GmbH £ 100% A% 7~ 1 2= M 2 4 °

A B TK Mold Germany GmbH #) IR & &
EEMNMARESBIREFERAER
HTEARAET - ZAERBRERER
PR ERFEEOGTBIER - 8
HaRene i BBAFHMN
BenENERTXAMAMNMGBIERE

ARFBEEREEAENAANEIER
RWMAT

2015

794
3%
2%

16%

RETHEARK ARAEZAR
FREARBERE (20155 « &)

WA RRBE LS RERE I ER2016
F12A31AM B ERI0% A& E
T B BRI B RERIE -

HBLER R R2016F12 A1 B #E N2% -
AEBDNEBEARRETAEERES
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

7Y

CATEGORY
2016
HK$’000
FHET
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRANEE
Loans and receivables: B R P W RROE
Trade and other receivables (excluding B hEMEBEWFIECTEEE
prepayments and tax recoverable) TE RE R A i e FRIE) 211,399
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEBENES 90,766
Restricted cash ZRAIE S 26,476
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 381,310
709,951
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEAEBRANEE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: REBHEKAGTEZAE:
Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 N E M e OB
non-financial liabilities) (TRiEFEcHAaE) 242,252
Bank borrowings RITEE 199,294
441,546
16 INVENTORIES 16 &
2016
HK$’000
THER
Raw materials R M # 17,337
Work in progress ES o 189,478
Finished goods BURK o 64,071
270,886
Less: allowance for impairment R E (6,498)

264,388

15 RERETHEMTA

2015
HK$’000
TAET

187,058
104,238

1,176
319,951

612,423

251,290
205,339

456,629

2015
HK$'000
TAET

26,551
208,327
33,676

268,554
(14,152)

254,402

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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16 |NVENTOR|ES (Continued)

16 FEw

The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as WEBEBESHONTAOT
follows:
2016
HK$°000
FTHET
At beginning of the year F4
Currency translation difference X ER
(Reversal of)/allowance for inventory MEFS (BE), HiE
obsolescence
At end of the year FR

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year was
HK$1,152,431,000 (2015: HK$1,176,627,000).

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2015
HK$'000
TAET

12,907
(635)

1,880

14,152

FAFABERAZFEXER

1,152,431,0007% 7T (20154F : 1,176,627,000

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for impairment

Trade receivables, net
Prepayments and deposits
Export tax refund receivables
Value-added tax recoverable
Advances to employees
Others

HBIT) ©
=%
17EZ R EMMEWRRKE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

g 5 W E 213,079 186,227
R ERE (6,807) (3,735)
B SRR IEFE 206,272 182,492
JENRE S 17,632 27,867
O R F e U SR IE 16,883 10,705
A U [ 32 {8 ¢ 7,650 18,916
BlEEER 4,127 2,801
HAth 1,000 1,765
253,564 244,546
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@

)

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

@)

17 EZ Kk H b E W FIE @)

# 5 i AR 2 R (A T3
55t -

2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

UsD E7T
EUR BT
RMB AR
HK$ BT

159,172 140,220
27,565 5,822
22,512 36,043

3,830 4,142

213,079 186,227

The credit period granted to customers is generally between
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
from the date of sales is as follows:

(b)

BEFREFNEEHBENTI0E
VH B -BHEAHEREFE
W R BEBRERE DTN

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Less than 3 months =@ANA

More than 3 months but not BB=EAETBGE—F
exceeding 1 year

More than 1 year —FEUE

202,283 182,170

10,220 3,737
576 320

213,079 186,227

The Group’s sales are made to various customers. While
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major
customers, these customers are reputable and with good
track record.

AEBNHEDNHHETRER
HAGEERARETIRETERR
F EZEEFEEHE ki
BEREFNEEALCE -

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
As at 31 December 2016, no trade receivables (2015: nil)
were past due but not impaired.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$6,807,000
(2015: HK$3,735,000), were impaired and covered by
allowance.

17 EZ K H A EWFIE @)

) (&)
R2016F12A31H MEZ FHE
IR TE (20154 &) BB EE R
AE e

R2016512 A31H - B B EMKFIA
6,807,0005% 7T (20154F : 3,735,000

Less than 3 months @A NUA

More than 3 months but not
exceeding 1 year

More than 1 year

—FNUE

HBE=EAENEE—F

AL ERELCFLEE -
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET
2,536
879
320
8,785

(c) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

The movements on the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

c) BEZRBNRERERE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FHET

At beginning of the year F 1) 5,505
Allowance for impairment DRI e 5,902
Reversal of allowance for impairment ol (B BB 5 % [ (7,672)
At end of the year FR 3,735

The creation and release of allowance for impairment have
been included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(c¢) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
primarily denominated in USD and EUR and the fair values of
trade and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivables was the
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for
these receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due and impaired assets.

ISR R M5 (8)

17 E 5 K& H b FE W 7 IE @)

) EZEBURERERE®

R20164F 201512 A31H ' &
SRHEMERFEZEEABEETE
NETEBRITAE BEESRE
HEWRIE, A BEAEKRAEE
BE -

R20164F & 201512 318 » &
EEESHREMERFENRTK
FEERR A L Z 585 E R RIE
CEEBE AEEWARZERE
WSRIB R B E R -

B 5 N CE i e WK TR B L (b 38 B
TEREIPIREREEE -

]
L
L ]
@
@
®
L]
®
L ]
®
@
®
L
®
L
@

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18 AIHEENEMEE
ASSETS
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Beginning of the year F 1) -
Additions NE 307,671
Disposals EE (307,671)
End of the year FR -
The available-for-sale financial assets represent investments in AP ENeMEEERERATE
wealth management products managed by high credit quality BEEEZEERTEENENE
commercial banks in the PRC with expected return range from 2.80% m v TAHRAF B 3R R ) F2.80% = 3.40%
t0 3.40% (2015: 3.12% to 3.25%) per annum and will mature within (20154F : 3.12% £3.25%) * I # » —
one year. FREIE -
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19 RERRESEEY

2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Cash and bank balances He RIB1THEH
Restricted cash 2R 2

407,786 321,127
(26,476) (1,176)

381,310 319,951

As at 31 December 2016, restricted cash mainly represented
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for issue of guarantee
letter for the import of raw materials.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their
carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to credit risk.

20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

MN2016F12A31H XREIEL T E
IBAFE DRV BB ERKmMRIE
THEEREANZRHTR -

REeMReEBEYNAAERELRE
BRE BRERAEERR -

20 AR IR 10 5 8

PREMIUM

Number of

ordinary
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: shares  Share capital
ERTRBENEER : EEREE (S
(thousands) (HK$’000)
(F&) (F#&mT)

As at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 52201541 A1 H + 2015412 A

and 31 December 2016 318 %2016 12 A31H 826,600 82,660
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

e

20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE 20 REAR KRG &E @
PREMIUM (Continued) @
(@  Movement in issued shares is as follows: @ BEBITROHEHNOT
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
igvig Q| ZBER % 3% & #st
(thousands) (HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK$’000)

(TR (F#&T) (F#&T) (F#&T)

At 1 January 2015, 31 7201541 A1H -
December 2015 and 201512 A31H &

31 December 2016 2016412 A31 H 826,600 82,660 237,902 320,562
(b)  All shares issued rank pari passu with each other. b)) AFELEITEROHBUEZERZFE
= e
21 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 21 U B ER 2
On 29 December 2014, options over 6,660,000 shares were MR2014F12A298 » KR AL I1TEE
granted to three directors of the Company at the exercise price of FRBEMDI6IEBTAARR ZRES
HK$1.61 per share with no vesting condition. The exercise price of % T 7] 7R EE & $£6,660,000 % % 17 &)
the granted options was equal to the market price of the shares on BEEECERE - ERTEREZ
the date of the grant. The options are exercisable within three years TEEERMNELBABHER 2ME
from the grant date. The Group has no legal or constructive BE -EHEERETARTEABEE=
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. FRIFE - AEB W EZEZEXIHETEE

TURSEMSEEBRE -

No share option is forfeited, exercised or expired subsequent to the BEEiRkEN L EBEs Rk &
grant date. Tk fEm o

The options over 6,660,000 shares outstanding at the end of the A HF R M R 17 (% 2. 6,660,000 17 B A% 18
year have the expiry date of 28 December 2017 and exercise price R2017F12H28B @ m - 1R EAE
of HK$1.61 per share. i A% 1.613 7T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥ 3R B A (8

22 RETAINED EARNINGS 22 & B i Fl
2015
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January »1A1H 160,063
Profit for the year F K5 7 187,088
Dividends paid BB (66,128)
Transfer to statutory reserves R T THE (11,974)
At 31 December M®12A31H 269,049
23 OTHER RESERVES 23 Hfth 6
Currency
Statutory Share option translation
reserves reserves reserve Total
EERE BRERE ERREAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%F1 818 21,777 3,334 20,989 46,100
Transfer to statutory reserves 8 8 2= 3K F (& 11,974 — — 11,974
Currency translation X ZE8
differences — — (42,184) (42,184)
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12831H 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 15,890
At 1 January 2016 ®2016%F1A1H 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 15,890
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) B # % X F 7 15 (9) 13,606 — — 13,606
Currency translation fE N E5
differences — — (85,263) (85,263)
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12A 31 H 47,357 3,334 (56,458) (5,767)
(a) Statutory reserves (@) EEMFME
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the BIEPBEBEBELEER K&
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make WEENE AT EEEB T
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after U A H) R D A 10% 2 B¢ & 5k F
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional when oM B EEEBEI TR
the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its &R H)50% 8% LA B - A @& Sk

registered capital. Upon approval from the board of directors,
the statutory reserves can be used to offset accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

EERE— SRR KEEER
BOAEREAANFEASE
hEK BN R EE -
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24 BORROWINGS

24 {8 &

2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Non-current FEENEA
Bank borrowings RITEE
— unsecured — K IR 55,761 107,968
Less: current portion of non-current o JERNEREEE
borrowings mENE o (21,451) (39,917)
34,310 68,051
Current BN
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (a) — HE () 78,957 97,371
— unsecured — K I 64,576 —
Total short-term bank borrowings MERITIEEES 143,533 97,371
Current portion of non-current borrowings BN 8 {& & ~ 7k ) &8 5 21,451 39,917
164,984 137,288
Total borrowings BEHEE 199,294 205,339

(@ As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$78,957,000 (2015: HK$97,371,000) were secured over

(@) M2016F12A31 8 iR 17 &
B 78,957,000 JT (20154 :

the following: 97,371,000 7T) Jy LALA T IE B 1
-
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bank deposits |ITFER 90,766 104,238

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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24 BORROW'NGS (Continued)

(b)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in

the following currencies:

24 58w

b FEENREERTIIEEEE:

2016
HK$’000
FERT

HK$S
EUR

B
SIS]

120,337
78,957

199,294

(c)  The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes and
the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are

as follows:

2015
HK$’'000
TAET

107,968
97,371

205,339

© REEREXRAHNEBEHEMNF
XEHRBIENEFREER Y

W

2016
HK$’000
TR

2015
HK$'000
TAET

205,339

2015
HK$'000
TAET

137,288
30,587

Borrowings at floating rates FEREREE
6 months or less 618 A AR 199,294
(d)  The borrowings are repayable as follows: o EBEAERUTEHRRANES:
2016
HK$’000
FHET
Within 1 year 1F R 164,984
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 19,810
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 14,500

199,294

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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24 BORROW'NGS (Continued) 24 {'E' E (')
()  The effective weighted average interest rates at the balance e BEABXRHHNEERIMEFH
sheet dates are as follows: FEHOT
2016 2015
Bank borrowings denominated in: NI EEAENRITEE:
HK$ /% T 2.31%
EUR B 7T 0.63%
() The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current  FEBMEENFEEERARERN
borrowings are as follows: ™~
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Carrying amounts REE 68,051
Fair value (level 2) ARE(E2E) 68,051
Weighted average discount rate used RNABERMETFS
for fair value (%) 8538 & (%) 2.31%
25 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT 25 Bt f¥ ## Bl I % Ut A
GRANTS
The amount represented various subsidies granted by and received RSB EPEEHBTHBEARLY
from local government authorities in the PRC. The movements in HTHZIEME - A BELERA
deferred income on government grants are as follows: WEBMT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Receipt of grants WEIHE S 5,401
Recognised in the profit or loss RIEFRER 5,401
As at 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 831 H —

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016
HK$’000
FERT

Trade payables

Deposits received from customers

Wages and staff welfare benefits payable

Accrual for expenses and other payables
(Note (a))

Other taxes payable

B 5 R’ 3R

BEhEFPZS

ENTENERRM

F& &t 7 S B EL A 8 A 3R IR
(it (@)

H & S B IR

211,355
163,446
81,397

30,897
6,926

494,021

(@  The amount mainly represented accruals for commission and

professional service expenses.

(b)  Trade payables were denominated in the following currencies:

26 E5 K EHMEMNKE

2015
HK$'000
TAET

230,769
152,968
62,035

20,521
5,687

471,980

@) HMRAEIERBERIEXRBER

XEFER -

b)) EBHENRBENLTIE

2016
HK$’000
TERT

RMB
USsD
HK$
EUR
JPY

AR
e

BT
SRE|

161,567
38,321
9,020
1,686
761

211,355

The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other
payables were primary denominated in RMB.
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e aHE

2015
HK$’000
TAET

182,691
31,431
12,896

2,836
915

230,769

e R X & Bt B A SR RO BR
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(©

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

= ¥ AT \ A8

26 ES5 R HMENSKE @

© EBZENRENRKREITEAT :

0-90 days
91-120 days
121-365 days
Over 365 days

0£90H
91E120H
121£365H
#8365 H

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THET
164,392 191,226
27,187 22,492
10,207 15,966
9,569 1,085
211,355 230,769

27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

27 EERER

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same
taxation authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities

WEEEATEENSNHAHAEE
HARAHEEEEE  BfRE—
MBEEBBEZBELEMEH 88K
HREEMESHEERAG - BLEHREA

is as follows: BERBEINOT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Before offsetting K 88 Al
Deferred income tax assets: BEEMESREE :
— to be recovered after more than — BRBIE12EA %K E
12 months 795
— to be recovered within 12 months —# R 12{E A AUk E 3,241
4,036
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFESRERE:
— to be settled after more than —BRBBEI2EAREE
12 months (55) (147)
— to be settled within 12 months —#BR12EAREE (10,661) (10,661)
(10,716) (10,802)
After offsetting K%
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFREHAaE (7,184) (6,766)

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, deferred income tax assets and deferred

income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in the same entity,

to the extent of HK$3,532,000 (31

HK$4,036,000).

December 2015:

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as

27 EZEFMEB @

R2016F12A31H  RAREBHNE
EFEHMEERELEMEHABED R
H K $4 3,582,000/ 7T (20154 12 A 31
H : 4,036,000 7T) °

EEMEHEERARESHOT

As at 1 January 2016

Currency translation
differences

Recognised in profit or
loss

R20164F1 A1H
fEH =%

As at 31 December
2016

R20164F 12 531 H

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

3,241

(117)

(1,767)

(22)

1,149

follows:
Deferred
Accelerated income on
Deferred income tax tax Accrued  government
assets depreciation expenses grants Total
b3 B 18 AT % BY
ELEFRESHREE e X B FE WA mE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT FET FHET
As at 1 January 2015 12015F1 A1 H 1,625 3,248 — 4,873
Currency translation M N =
differences (81) (244) — (825)
Recognised in profit or A 1E &5 IR ER
loss (749) 237 — (612)
As at 31 December M2015F 12 431 H
2015 795 3,241 — 4,036




27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

= ¥ AT \ A8

27 EZEMEB @

Revaluation
surplus in
related to
Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities income tax combination Total
EEFmEBHAR Bl EBESOHEE
iECE ZEMER BEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 1 January 2015 ©®2015%F1 A1 R (9,011) (254) (9,265)
Currency translation differences & i, = %8 1,627 7 1,634
Recognised in profit or loss RIBREREER (3,277) 106 (3,171)
As at 31 December 2015 #2015 12 431 H (10,661) (141) (10,802)

As at 1 January 2016 7K2016F1 H1H
Currency translation differences & i, = 58
Recognised in profit or loss RiBRRER

As at 31 December 2016 M2016F12 A31H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses amounting to HK$12,030,000 (31 December
2015: HK$6,599,000) as its realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

(10,661)

(10,661)

(10,802)
= 8
- 78

(10,716)

BEFEREEDAEBHREES
AEBARERREFNEEMEE
ZRIEEEBERAR R20164F12
A31A AEBTABRAREAREES
$812,030,0007% 7T (201512 4318 :
6,599,000/ 7T) ERIELEHIBEE - b
HREZHEIAEEE - EEHEES
B g ERBES -

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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28 DIVIDENDS 28

e
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.04 (2015 BEREER0.04E T

Interim: HK$0.03) per ordinary share (20154 F HA : 0.037 7T)
A R AR B
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.10 (2015: #% & i% & 3@ i%0.1078 7T
HK$0.07) per ordinary share (20154 : 0.07% 7T)
AT EZERPRE

33,064 24,798

82,660 57,862

115,724 82,660

The dividends paid in 2016 and 2015 were HK$90,926,000 (HK$0.11
per share) and HK$66,128,000 (HK$0.08 per share) respectively. A
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of
HK$0.10 per share, amounting to a total of HK$82,660,000, is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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R2016F R2016F Z A B 5 Bl B
90,926,000/ 7T (A% f% 5 0.11738 7T) &
66,128,000 7T (& X A% 19 0.087 7T ) °
ARRBERERERRBEF RS &S
k8 E2016F12A31R IEFE 2
KEBRBEROI0BE T BRELER
82,660,000 7T ©



29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated

from operations:

/N eF E

20 EHtEERBRIE

@ BAEHMEMNELERBRSE

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance expenses (Note 9)
Interest income (Note 9)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 14)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)
(Reversal of)/allowance for inventory
obsolescence (Note 7)
Allowance/(reversal of) for account
receivables (Note 7)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Restricted cash
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

ZHERX:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FE T
B AT 15 A0 A1 g A 229,017 214,613
FEE
BE R (M729) 3,230 4,901
BN (Hf7£9) (5,533) (9,721)
ME - BELREETE
(KtaE13) 71,991 61,802
mREERE
(Hfat14) 3,404 2,558
HEME BEKEE
(M=) &18 (F1ate) (772) 294
MREFE(EE), TE
(KiaE7) (7,192) 1,880
JE s BR SR B 4 ()
(Ktat7) 3,072 (1,770)
BiEEoEE:
ey (2,332) (16,528)
Z PR (25,300) (1,176)
B 5 & H e 5RIE (12,090) 52,046
B 5 & H M FE S 518 8,861 10,499
KEMBRE 266,356 319,398

(b)  In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from
disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

b REHBAERERA HEY
¥ BELREBEMAFHRERE:

Net book amount disposed
Gain/(loss) on disposal (Note 6)

Proceeds from disposal

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000

TET FHET

B HEREFE 1,373
HEWE (BB (Kite) (294)
HESRIE 1,079

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH
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30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 HAAEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent M2016412 A31 H » 7N & B I & {F ]
liabilities (31 December 2015: nil). BEAKARBEOIGEI2AZIE ) o
31 COMMITMENTS 31 R
(@) Capital commitments (@) BAAKIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: REBBUATERARE:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Acquisitions of plant and equipment: BB HE KB E ¢

— Contracted but not provided for — BB RIERE 47 517
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BREHERE
The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating AEEREBETAIHELEHEE
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum EHEME - AEETIHIHL
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as EHEBTHRRRZMTHRE
follows: HERMKABENOT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THER FHET
Not later than one year —F R
— to related companies — B A A 38,461
— to third parties —F=5 4,229
42,690
Later than one year and not later than —F & AF RN
five years
— to related companies — AT 38,236
— to third parties —%=5 2,478
40,714
83,404
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R M5 (8)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N2 EHMARS

(@) Names and relationship

(b)

The following companies and individuals were related parties
of the Group that had transactions or balances with the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016:

Name of the related party
BHE A8

(@ EWMERERE

T RBREANEBREZE2016F
12AMBIEFEEAEHBHAR
DG ARER B

Relationship with the Group
BHASEzBR

TK Technology Holdings Ltd.
RIMREEERLA

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.

IR CRINBER QA

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd.
MRIZRBORID AR

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
R IRRIEH A E 88

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RECRIEH B E 58

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
REBRREHNER

Transactions with related parties during the b) FREBBLIZRS
year
Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note 21 BR B AE21 AN 34 BT #: 52 A BA Bk 5
and 34, the following transactions with related parties were R 525N 2N & B B 5 A B i
undertaken by the Group during the year. FETHOZZWTE -
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FH&T
Operating lease expenses paid (Note () B & & E & (HaF() 29,433
Note: K&t -
(i The amounts represented rental expenses for land and buildings () Z X B 52016 F [A] KT Bl 5 %
for factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology Holdings @/ﬁ Rl REIEE ORI FH
Ltd. and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. in 2016 (2015: Rental RE]ZIETR RN ZEF iz
expenses for land and buildings for factory and office purposes EI‘]i i K1 F 8 2 B (2015

were paid to TK Technology Holdings Ltd., TK Technology
(Shenzhen) Ltd. and TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd.). All rental

FAFTHEEERFERRA
FRIBRCRIN) BR A R FHR

expenses were determined with reference to independent property TEBORI)ER LA EL
valuation. B RN i B £ R EF A

HefAX) EHLHAXHZ
B YEGEEE -

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

]
L
L ]
@
@
®
L]
®
L ]
®
@
®
L
®
L
@
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

32 B I RS wm

) TEEEAEHFMH

REERBENXMHEIEEE
ANEZHMBRFMT -

Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - e Rkitil
Pension costs — defined contribution R K& AN — E 58
plans R E &

2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
24,581

179

24,760

(d) Indemnity

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group’s
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a result
of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of the land
and buildings owned by certain related companies by any
company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the relevant
authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of such land
and buildings.
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B B AR IR R K M Rl A G 1R AR
SEEAKE QA WEREAREA)
AxBM (AT 8RR ERE TH
BARBAEN L RIEFHES
FEENMERREBRFELR
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REZEEBARLERZSF L
REFOHERBESHRBABM
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2 ¥ at (AR
33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B EAAREERBRRK
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY FiEEE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B it FHExT FH&T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT Z2EE 221,055 221,055
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG B 367,839 339,626
Other receivables H {th jE W 3B 24 898
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEEY 431 263
Total current assets ME)EEBR 368,294 340,787
Total assets BMEE 589,349 561,842
Equity and liabilities EzREE
Equity attributable to owners of AABHEE AEMN
the company fE=
Share capital B& 2 82,660 82,660
Share premium & 0 % 8 412,424 412,424
Other reserves Ho At % (@) 3,334 3,334
Retained earnings R & A (@) 90,528 62,959
Total equity e 588,946 561,377
Liabilities =i
Current liabilities REasE
Other payables H b FE S ROE 403 465
Total liabilities HBEE 403 465
Total equity and liabilities ExkBEAESE 589,349 561,842
FIEEER)ERAT —O—<EFH
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

B EAQNFREEEEBRE
EEEZ2H @

(@ ADAREEED

Retained Other

earnings reserves

REER H fth 5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

At 1 January 2015 20151 H1H 55,128 3,334
Profit for the year F K 7 73,959 =
Dividends % 5 (66,128) —
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12H31H 62,959 3,334
At 1 January 2016 m2016%F1H1H 62,959 3,334
Profit for the year F X5 F 118,495 —
Dividends s (90,926) —
At 31 December 2016 M20165FE12A31H 90,528 3,334
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

4 EEEANRER

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is

set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

Name

&

Fees

ik
HK$’000
TRER

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael (i)

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-
executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

HITES
FHREE
SEMEE()

FREBEE
RITERLE

BYFHITES

ELTEHL
IR B &

BERELE

(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung is also the chief executive officer.

Salary

¥
HK$’000
TER

@ EERFETBRAEME

BEEREIEZTBRABNEMHE
5l -

B Z2016F12A31HILLFE:

Employer’'s

contribution to

Discretionary retirement
bonus benefit scheme Total

EBEW

BIKEAR
BETEA BE K3 Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET

() BEALXETREEHTE -

RIEEER)ARLIE —O—ARFFH

eoceceeececoeas

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 7% ¥R 3% I R (A8

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF M EEFEINRER@®
DI RECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EBERFETBRAEME
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: HZE2015F12A31 B IEFE -
Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary retirement
Name Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme Total
BEH
RRAE T
e ik #e B IETE AL B At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET TAET TAET

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Pui Leung MR LE - 2,352 1,946 18 4,316
Mr.Yung Kin Cheung  §EH% 4

Michael (i) — 2,100 1,390 18 3,508
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBELE — 1,560 834 18 2,412
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RBESLE — 1,692 973 18 2,683
Independent BIYFHTES

non-executive

Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy # & FE+ 273 - - - 273
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai IRy kA&

Chung 273 — — — 273
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong EhEE 273 - - - 273

819 7,704 5,143 72 13,738
(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. () B EETNBEERITE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
D|RECTORS (Continued)

(b) There was no directors’ retirement benefits, directors’

()

termination benefits, consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’services and no loans, quasi-
loans or other dealings entered into by the Group in favour of
any directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year (2015 : Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved for contracts amongst group companies and as
disclosed in Note 32, there was no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

B 7% ¥R % I & (A8

34 EE/A R E = m

(b) #r BERREESREM A

()

FE=FRHAMNESRKEF
EEXRUERBERNRAE LRI
EREE EENIZEHEER
HEERBASZANER EE
REAEEFRIL2EMR S
(20154 : 4&) -

EENXZ -REIEN
MNEXER

BREBEARBME QMM EEI2R
BEEIN  RERKFAEME
B MEFERNRAMLH A
SEXBEMEBEKR BARQA
EERNEPEER[MERBEK
BmmR 5 RHHEL -

FIEBERBRIE —O—~FFH

]
L
L ]
@
@
®
L]
®
L ]
®
@
®
L
®
L
@
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Five Year Financial Summary
EFEMBHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILEE
2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT
Revenue WA 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920 1,606,205
Net profit for the Year KARER A
attributable to the owners  fE{§ FEE
of the Company 4t K| 135,193 121,348 153,923 187,088
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAET FAET
Total assets BEE 950,877 955,456 1,137,434 1,300,219
Total liabilities FEN= R 674,508 585,190 610,709 694,718
Total equity AR 276,369 370,266 526,725 605,501
Notes: Kzt -

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2016 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 are set out on pages 117
to 119 of this annual report.

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31
December 2013 and 2014 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 are set out in the 2013 and
2014 annual report of the Group.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 and of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2012 have been extracted from the Prospectus.

The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group
had been in existence throughout these financial years.
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KE BB 22015 2016 F 12431 H
HFEEFHEHEAUAR LI ERR
20154 R20164F 12 A31 H 89 & #f B &E
REEHRAFHRENIBEEZ119E »

REEE Z2013F K 2014F 12 31 H 1-
FEEFEMEHEERAEBR013F
R2014F12A3THAM A HEER B &
HRAEH2013 2014 F A -

KEEFE F2012F12A31 K4 %
AR R20124E12 31 A B & G B &
REGHHE A RRER -

AR BT REMAEEE FIREE
RESEHRFRE —BEFERRBR -
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